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COOPERATION AGREEMENT
ON THE ESTABLISHMENT AND OPERATION OF
KEAN UNIVERSITY, WENZHOU

Following the signing of friendship and co-operation agreement between Zhejiang
Province, PRC and New Jersey, USA in 1981 and the establishment of “Sister
Cities” relationship between Wenzhou and Union County in 1998, for the purpose
of furthering Sino-American cultural and educational exchange, speeding up
internationalization of Chinese higher education, introducing American high-quality
education resources, and promoting the development of Wenzhou higher education,
adhering to the principle of equality and mutual benefit and through friendly
consultations, in accordance with the Higher Education Law of the PRC, the
Regulations of the PRC on Chinese-foreign Co-operation in Running Schools, and
other relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, Wenzhou University of
China(hereinafter referred to as “WU”) and the Kean University of USA
(hereinafter referred to as “KU*) agree to jointly establish a co-operative university,
Kean University, Wenzhou (hereinafter referred to as the “ KUW”) in Wenzhou, _
Zhejiang Province of the PRC;

On the basis of “MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AMONG KEAN—
UNIVERSITY, THE WENZHOU MUNICIPAL PEOPLE’S GOVERNMENT,
AND THE NZFC-SINO AMERICAN ASSOCIATION ON THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF KEAN UNIVERSITY WENZHOU CITY” signed on 28th
August 2005, gready promoted and facilitated by Wenzhou Municipal People’s
Government and the NZFC-SINO American Association, the Parties hereby enter

‘Into this co-operation agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”) and
* agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT
Parties to this Agreement are as follows: '

Chinese Party:

Wenzhou University

Legal Address: Chashan Higher Education Zone, Wenzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC 325035

Legal Representative: ---— '

Position: -—--

Nationality: PRC

USA Party:
Kean University, USA
Legal Address: 1000 Morris Avenue

Union, New Jersey 07083, USA
Legal Representative: Professor Philip Connelly
Position: Vice President of Administration and Finance
Nationality: USA

_ ARTICLE 2 THE INSTITUTE TO BE ESTABLISHED
2-01  The Institute To Be Established

The Chinese name of the institute is: ¥ & B A 22
The English name of the institute is: Kean University, Wenzhou.
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2-02 Legal address: Chashan Higher Education Zone,
QOubhai District, Wenzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

ARTICLE 3 PURPOSES AND BUSINESS SCOPE
3-01 Purpose of establishing Kean University, Wenzhou

The Parties acknowledge that the purpose of establishing and operating
Kean University, Wenzhou is as follows:

(1) To establish the first independent Sino-American co-operative
educational institute with legal status and qualified to grant
certificates, diplomas and degrees independently;

(2)  To introduce international high-quality educational resources and
advanced teaching, research, and management methods;

(3)  To provide easier access to high-class educational opportunities and

resources to students in the PRC: and

(4)  To contribute to the development and internationalization of
‘ Chinese higher education.

gz - .7 3-02 Business Scope of Kean University, Wenzhou
The business scope of Kean University, Wenzhou shall cover;

(1) providing undergraduate courses in line with the current courses
(subjects) provided in Union, New J ersey, USA. In the first year,
subjects such as Education, Language; Film and Media Arts and
Business and Public Administration shall be provided in
corresponding colleges. Two new majors shall be introduced each
year in the following years till an ideal subject structure is finally
formed,;

(2)  providing companion programs in the natural and socjal sciences,
humanities and the arts as well as masters programs in education,
business and public administration elc.;

(3)  carrying out any other activities related with higher education and
research; '

(4)  issuing certificates, diplomas, and degrees of Kean University, USA
and Kean University, Wenzhou to qualified students in accordance
with relevant Chinese laws and regulations;

(3)  academic and cultural exchanges with domestic and international
universities; and

(6)  other activities approved by compefent authorities;
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Representations and Warranties of the Parties

ARTICLE 4 VALID TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

4-01 Kean University, Wenzhou shai] exist for a term of fifty (50) years
commencing from the date on which the License is issned by Ministry of
Education;

4-02 The term of Kean University, Wenzhou may be extended upon mutual
written agreement of the Parties and approval from Ministry of Education;

ARTICLE 5 INVESTMENT
5-01 Gross investment of KUW is estimated to be RMB 500 million. The Chinese
party is responsible for raising the above funds. Chinese party shall acquire
'S 11 operation of KUW, and
tructures and facilities as well as other
infrastructure on that land;
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502 The American Party shall be responsible for programming curriculum,
providing text books, establishing academic system, delivering teaching
activities, designating teachers, and granting certificates, diplomas and
degrees of Kean University;

5-03 Funds required in the carly stages of the establishment of KU'W shall be
provided by the Chinese Party, and included in total investment from the
Chinese Party;

ght of the land aﬁd title and ownership of the |
building and facilities on that very land.

Considering that it is the Chinese party that

building and other facilities, the American

raises funds for the fand,
regard.

Party claims no interests in this

g _ ARTICLE 6 RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES

6-01
(1) Wenzhou University hereb
University, USA that it

duly organized, validly
of the PRC.

y represeats and warrants to Kean
is an educational instityte with legal status,
existing and Jn good standing under the laws

(2)  Kean University, USA hereby Tepresents and warrants that it is an
educational institution with legal status, duly organized, validly

4 .



existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of New
Jersey, USA and is a nationally accredited institution of higher
education in the United States of America.

(3)  Each Party hereby represents and warrants to the other Party that;

(a) the making of this Agreement shall not violate the laws of the
jurisdiction in which each Party is organized;

(b) it is not currently involved in any litigation or arbitration
which if resolved against it would materially and adversely
affect its ability to carry out its obligations hereunder; and

(c) it possesses the financial and intellectual property ability
necessary to make the investment contemplated hereunder.

6-02 Rights and Responsibilities of Chinese Party
Rights of the Chinese Party

The Chinese Party has the following rights as: -

(1)  to send an increasing number of lecturers to KUW yearly to
participate academic work, starting from working as assistants
lecturers till they can handle core subjects;

(2)  for the teachers from Wenzhou University to have access to library

and online educational resources system of KUW and KU to study

and research;

3) for the teachers from Wenzhou University to communicate and co-
operate with foreign lecturers at KUW; and

@ to send teachers to KXW to deliver courses that Chinese students are
required to accomplish according to The Regulations of the PRC on
Chinese-foreign Cooperation in Running Schools. Expense incumred
shall be covered by KUW.

Responsibilities of the Chinese Party
The Chinese Party shall

(1) obtain land user’s right certificate after the issuance of the License by
Ministry of Education;

(2) assist the Kean University, Wenzhou in obtaining all necessary
approvals, permits and licenses for this Agreement, Articles of
Association, other documents related to the University status and the
operation of the Kean University, Wenzhow;

(3) assist the Kean University, Wenzhou by acting as liaison with the
relevant authorities to effectively procure the external water supply,
fuel supply, power supply, transportation, communications, and other
services required by Kean University, Wenzhou;
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6-03 Rights and Responsibilities of the American Party

assist the expatriate employees of the Kean University, Wenzhou in

obtaining all necessary entry visas, work permits and residence
before the operation of Kean University, Wenzhou;

provide student support service to Kean University, Wenzhou, as
requested, by allocating staff according to regulations by the

Ministry of Education. Expenses incurred shall be covered by Kean
University, Wenzhou;

carry out the student recruitment work for the first year at the
expenses of Kean University, Wenzhou;

assist in the design, construction, and maintenance of a new location
suitable for teaching and learning in compliance with the
specifications agreed by the Parties. Such location shall also be

constructed in accordance with all relevant PRC standards and codes
of practice; and

%{’ovide any other assistances requested by the Kean University, )

enzhou from time to time.

Rights of the American Party

The American Party has the following rights as:
(1

)

3)

to send academic and non-academic staff to KUW, who shall get
remunerations as is required by contracts to be signed;

to delegate an academic supervisor to assess faculty in KUW

according to curmrent assessment system and standards in Kean
University, USA; and

to get a certain proportion of tuition and fees revenue to cover the
direct expense related to the operation of KUW: a separate
agreement on the specific proportion is to be signed;

Responsibilities of the American Party

The Ametican Party shall;

(1) provide all necessary legal documents for approval and registration
for establishment of KUW;

(2)  send a number of lecturers and administrative staff, in accordance
with PRC relative regulations, to provide academic and managing
work at KUW,;

()  issue certificates, diplomas and degrees of the Kean University,
USA, which are the same as the ones issued in New Jersey and
acceptable in USA, to qualified students at KUW;

(4}  introduce internationall

provide courses, text books, facilities
same level as in those in Kean University, USA;

y advanced academic system to KUW: and
and library materials at the
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5) admit credits of KUW students that volunteer to study at Kean
University, USA, and provide convenience; and

(6) provide any other assistances requested by the KUW from time to
time.
6-04 Non-assignment of rights and responsibilities

Neither Party may cause, permit or suffer an assignment without the
prior written consent of the other Party.
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Any assignment by a Party in violation of the terms of this Article
shall be void and of no force or effect as between the Parties and
shall constitute an event of Default govemmed by the terms of
Atrticle 14.
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ARTICLE 7 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
AND SENTOR MANAGEMENT -

The authority and responsibilities of the KUW Board of directors, President, and
Provost shall be discussed and determined in details in a separate supplementary
agreement after this Agreement is signed.

Pl " et =
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"7-01 Board of Directors
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M (1)  KUW shall have a Board of Directors, the highest local policy-
making authority in Xean University, Wenzhou to make
operational decisions.

(2)  The Board shall be composed of representatives from the two parties,
the President of KUW and representative(s) of teaching faculty. At
least one third of the representatives appointed by both parties shall
have no less than five (5) years of teaching experiences or working
experiences in educational seetor,

(3)  The Board shall consist of fifteen (15) Directors. Eight (8) Directors
shall be from the Chinese Party (one of them shall take the position
of President of KUW), and seven (7) Directors shall be from the
American Party.

(4)  Directors shall serve a term of four (4) years. Directors may be re-
elected to serve consecutive terms.

(5)  The Directors shall be accountable to the Parties appointing them,
and comply with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the
Articles of Association, perform their duties in good faith and protect
the interest of the Kean University, Wenzhou.
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7-02 President
(1)  KUW shall have one (1) President, who shall be approved by the
Board of Directors and competent authorities;

(2)  The President of KUW shall be a Chinese citizen and reside in China,
be virtuous and devoted to his/her motherland. The President of
KUW shall have no less than five (5) years of teaching experience or
leadership experience in a Chinese higher education institution.
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(3)  The President of KUW shall be accountable to the Board of
Directors, and be responsible for the day-to-day management of the
operation within the authoriz

ation delegated to him/her,
(4)  The president of KUW shall serve a term of four (4) years, and may
be re-appointed to serve consecutive terms,
7-03 Provost

8-01

8-02

8-03

- 804

- 805

8

06 Academic management of KUW shall
Provost and Vice President. All acade

(H KUW shall have one ( 1) Provost, wh

0 shall at the same time take the
position of Vice President of Operation.

(2)  The Provost and Vice President of Operation shall be appointed by
both President of Kean University, USA and President of Kean
University, Wenzhou,

(3)  The Provost and Vice President shal] be

virtuous, and have no less
than five (5) years of

managerial experience in education.
(4)  The Provost and Vice President shall be

ARTICLE 8 ACADEMIC MANAGEMENT

All students entering KUW must meet the admission requirements of
KU and its academic programs, as well as my
College Entrance Examination

eet requirements of Chinese
System. All instruction in KUW will be
conducted in English, with ]

imited exceptions

KUW reserves the right to allow a number of jts students to attend KTJ.
KU shall admit the credits those students have gained in KUW. Grades
and credits gained in both KUW and KU by those students shall be
reflected on official transcripts.

KU reserves the right to allow a number of its students to attend KUW.
KUW shall admit the credits those students

have gained in KU. Grades
and credits gained in both KUW and KU by those students shall be
reflected on official transcripts.

KUW shall grant to qualified students certificates, diplomas, and degrees
of Kean University, Wenzhou, and of Keap University, USA.
Academic management of KUW and the selection of faculty to provide
the instruction in KUW will be con

sistent with current practices in place
In Kean University, USA .

be organized and conducted by the
mic policies, procedures, and




grading systems will comply with current standards established at Kean
University, USA.

8-07 Setting of tuition and fees rate for KUW rests with the Board of Directors,
as recommended by the Presidents of KU, KUW and the Provost, and shall
be in accordance with relevant Chinese laws.

ARTICLE 9 LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

9-01 The Legal Representative of Kean University, Wenzhou shall be chosen by
the Board of Directors between the Chairman of the Board and the President
of KUW. The 1* Legal Representative shall be the President of KUW.

9-02 If the Legal Representative of Kean University, Wenzhou is not designated
by the Board of Directors within 3 months, the President of KUW shall
automatically assume the tenure,

ARTICLE 10 LICENSING OF NAME AND
LOGO OF KEAN UNIVERSITY ~

) The Parties hereby agree that the trademark/trade name of Kean University, shall
be licensed to Kean University, Wenzhou during the valid term of this Agreement.

’ .The name of Kean University is only licensed for use and not as a part of the
American Party’s investment.

T i L 50 A A
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The Parties are to sign a separate Licensing Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 STAFF MANAGEMENT

11-01 The teaching faculty and non-teaching staff shall comply with criteria, rules,
and regulations stipulated by the KUW Board of Directors, in compliance
with Article 8-05 of this Agreement.

11-02 The policies relating to the issues such as recruitment, dismissal, salaries and
wages, welfare benefits, labor protection, labor insurance, bonuses,
discipline, award and penalty for the staff of Kean University, Wenzhou,
shall be proposed by the Provost and Vice President of Operation and the
President of KUW, and submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

ARTICLE 12 FINANCIAL AFFAIRS, ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING

12-01 The Chief Financial Officer of Kean University, Wenzhou shall be
responsible for the financial management of the KUW.

12-02 The Chief Financial Officer or designee shall propose to the Board of
Directors for approval of the accoupting system and procedures in
accordance with applicable PRC law. In addition, such accounting system
and procedures shall be in compliance with the internationally Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles to the ,maximum extend allowed by the
relevant PRC accounting regulations and auditing procedures.




12-03

12-04

12-05

12-06

12-07

1208

12-09

12-10

12-11

12-12

All accounting records, vouchers, books and statements of KUW shall be
made and kept in Chinese and English. All important financia] and
accounting documents, records and statements shall require the approval and
signature of the Chief Financial Officer.

The accounting books and Financial Statements of Kean University,
Wenzhou shall be kept in Renminb. Upon the written request from KU
President, certain data shall be additionally recorded in US dollars,

The Chief Financial Officer shall prepare annual Financial Statements, Such
Financial Statements shall be provided to each Party and to the relevant
authorities as required by accounting laws and regulations of PRC.

Each Party shall have the right to examine and copy all accounting books,
records, vouchers, contracts, subcontracts and documents of any kind
maintained by or for Kean University, Wenzhou. Each Party may make
such examination and copies during usual business hours without affecting
the ordinary operation. Each Party may exercise such rights through any-.
agent or employee of such Party, or by an independent public accountant or
attorney designated by such Party at its own expenses.

——

Within sixty (60) days after the end of each fiscal year, the Board shall

approve and submit to each Party the Financial Statements of Kean
University, Wenzhou with respect to such fiscal year,

All funds of the Kean University, Wenzhou shall be deposited in a bank
account or accounts in the name of Kean University, Wenzhou, in
compliance with applicable PRC law and accounting regulations. Such

An auditing firm or an accounting firm registered in the PRC shall be
appointed by the Board as KUW independent auditor to examine and verify
the annual Rinancial Statements. Kean University, Wenzhou shall submit
to the Parties an annual statement of final accounts, together with the audit
report of that auditing firm or accounting firm, within sixty (60) days after
the end of the fisca) year, or as soon as the audit is completed.

Each Party may, at its own €xpenses, appoint an accountant or auditor
(which may be either an accountant/auditor registered abroad or registered in
the PRC), on behalf of such Party, to audit the accountants of Kean
University, Wenzhon. Reasonable access to Kean University, Wenzhou
financial records shall be given to such accountant/auditor in accordance
with relevant PRC accounting and auditing regulations and such an
account/auditor shall keep confidential all documents under his auditing,

Financial operations of Kean University, Wenzhou shall be negotiated and
signed in a separate contract.

10 .




ARTICLE 13 INSURANCE

All insurance policies of Kean University, Wenzhou shall be effected with
insurance companies authorized to do business in the PRC. The coverage, value
and term of insurance shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 14 DEFAULTS AND LIABILITIES

The Parties hereto shall fulfill their obligations stipulated in this Agreement .

If any Party hereto defaults the terms of this Agreement and its schedules
(hereinafter referred to as the “Defaulting Party”), the other Party (hereinafter
referred to at the “Non-defaulting Party”) shall have the right to notify in writing
such Defaulting Party of its breach of agreement, and the Defaulting Party shall take
remedial measures to correct its breach within sixty (60) days after receiving the
above notification.

The Non-defaulting Party can claim for loss from the Defaulting Party.

If termination of this Agreement is an available remedy, such remedy shall be™
exercised by the non-defaulting Party by irrevocable and unconditional written
notice to the defaulting Party.

ARTICLE 15 TERMS, EXTENSION AND
TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT

15-01 This Agreement is valid for a term of fifty (50) years commencing from the
date on which the approval for co-operative establishment is issued by
Ministry of Education,

15-02 The valid term of this Agreement may be extended upon mutual written
agreement of the Parties and approval of the Ministry of Education.

15-03 If any of the following occurs, either Party shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement forthwith:

(1) The License or other permit, license necessary for the operation of
Kean University, Wenzhou is revoked by competent government
authorities;

(2)  The other Party materially breaches this Agreement or violates the
Articles of Association and such breach or violation is not cured
within ninety (90) days upon receipt of written notice sent by such
Party;

(3) Kean University, Wenzhou becomes bankrupt or insolvent, or is
subject to proceedings for liquidation or dissolution, or ceases to
caity on its operation;

(4)  The other Party becomes bankrupt or insolvent, or is subject to
proceedings for liquidation or dissolution, or ceases to carry on its
business; '

&) The other Party breaches any of its representations and warranties
made under this Agreement, '

11

———

Bl

R T e

i

g - - - PR, L T ey T T o e e T P AL o ot
il G T e o i e AR A T A e A e e R R R T i R

+ 3 kol




15-04 This Agreement may be terminated if both parties mutually agree to do so.

15-05 When this Agreement is terminated due to end of term or under any of the
above situations, operations of Kean University, Wenzhou shall be dealt in
accordance to the laws and related co-operative regulations and codes in the
PRC.

ARTICLE 16 FORCE MAJEURE
16-01 Event of Force Majeure

The term of “Event of Force Majeure” shall mean an event (including but
not limited to earthquakes, typhoons, fload, fire, strikes, sabotage, war, riots,
or epidemic), which is unforeseeable, unavoidable and beyond the control of
any Party upon the signing hereof. To the extend a Party is prevented byan
Event of Fore Majeure from performing any of its obligations under this
Agreement in a timely and proper manner, such Party shall be exempted..._
from assuming defauit liabilities arising from its inability to perform its
obligations under this Agreement. However, the affected Party must, with in
fifteen (15) days from the occurrence of an Event of Force Majeure or the
recovery of communication conditions, both by facsimile and by express
mail, notify the other Party of the details of the Event of Force Majeure and
of the explicit explanation concerning its inability to fully, timely and
properly perform its obligations under this Agreement due to the occurrence
of the Event of Force Majeure, and provide proof produced by a notary
public office where the Event of Force Majeure occurred evidencing the
occurrence of such Event of Force Majeure.

16-02 Force Majeure Effect

The Party so affected by the Event of Force Majeure shall not claim to be
exempted from assuming liabilities in the event that it fails to notify and
produce proof in accordance with the preceding provisions. The Party
affected by the Event of Force Majeure shall make all reasonable and
possible efforts to promptly eliminate or reduce the adverse impact of such
Event of Force of Majeure, and to resume to perform all relevant obligations
after the impact of such Event of Force Majeure is eliminated or reduced. If
the affected Party fails to perform such obligations set forth herein, it shall
be held liable for such additional damages or its failure to resume its
obligations.

ARTICLE 17 GOVERNING LAWS
The making, effectiveness, fulfillment and implementation, amendment ,

modification, and termination of this Agreement are protected and governed by
applicable PRC law.

This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the People’s Republic of China,
without regard to any conflict of law principles.

12
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ARTICLE 18 DISPUTES RESOLUTION

Any dispute arising from, out of the implementation of, or in connection with this
Agreement shall be settled through friendly consultation between the Parties.

In the event that no settlement of the dispute can be reached through consultation
within sixty (60) days following the date on which a written request for consultation
is delivered by any Party, the dispute shall be submitted by the claimant
(“Claimant”) to the China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission, Shanghai Commission, and be finally resolved by arbitration in
accordance with the arbitration rules of “China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission Arbitration Rules” in effect on the date of arbitration,

The arbitration shall be regarded as final and binding on both parties.

Both parties give up the right to tum to any litigation court, either in the USA or
PRC for the disputes resolution,

The prevailing Party in the arbitration shall be entitled to recover from the losing
Party all reasonable fees, costs and expenses incurred by the prevailing Party in .
connection with such arbitration, including reasonable fees, expenses and
disbursements for attomeys, experts and other third parties engaged in connection
therewith and its share of Arbitration Tribunal fees and costs.

ARTICLE 19 NOTICES

Any notice to be given to a Party under this Agreement shall be in writing, and may
be served by (i) depositing the Jhotice in a mail, addressed to the person to be

To : Wenzhou University
Attention: Juanjuan Lin
Address: Chashan Higher Education Zone, Wenzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC P.C.. 352035
Tel: + 86 577 8668 0700
Fax: + 86 577 8668 0750

To : Kean University
Attention: Dr. Dawood Farahi, President
Address: 1000 Morris Avenue, Unjon, NJ 07083
Tel: 011-908-737-7000 Fax: 011-908-737-7007

Each Party may make modification to its address for notice listed above by giving
the other Party a written notice of such change in the manner provided above,

13




20-01

20-02

20-03

20-04

20-05

20-06

20-07

ARTICLE 20 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Effectiveness

This Agreement shall become effective on the condition that the Parties have
signed, approval from Kean University Board of Trustee is obtained and the
License from Ministry of Education is issued.

Amendment and Modification

The amendments and modifications to this Agreement shall be made only by
a written instrument in English and Chinese signed by duly authorized
representatives of each Party, In case this Agreement is to be amended, the
Articles of Association shall be amended accordingly.

Severability

The invalidity of any article of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of
any other articles of this Agreement.

Language

This Agreement is written and is executed in English and Chinese langunages
with six (6) originals of each language version. Both language versions shall
be of equal force and effect.

Entire Agreement

This Agreement and any schedules attached hereto constitute the entire
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement and supersede all previous oral and written agreements, contracts,
understandings and communications between the Parties in respect of the
subject matter of this Agreement.

In the event of any discrepancy between this Agreement and written
agreements, contracts, understandings and communications between the
Parties, this Agreement shall prevail.

Relationship

Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a partnership
between the Parties or to cause any Party to become the agent or attorney of
the other Party for any purposes.

Cost

Each Party to this Agreement shall bear all its costs incurred in connection

with negotiations, preparation, completion, execution and performance of
this Agreement,

]
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20-08

20-09
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(16)
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Headings

The titles and headings of this Agreement are for convenience and reference
only and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the scope or intend of
this Agreement or the intent of any provision hereof.

Definitions

In this Agreement, unless the context requires otherwise, the following

words and expressions shall have the following assigned meanings, in
alphabetic order.

“Agreement” shall mean this Cooperation Agreement on the Establishrnent
and Operation of Kean University, Wenzhou between Wenzhou University,
PRC and Kean University, USA.

“Atticles of Association” shall mean the Articles of Association of the Kean
University, Wenzhou.

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of Kean University, Wenzhou.

“Chief Financial Officer” shall mean the chief financial officer of Kean
University, Wenzhou set forth in Article 12-01.

“China” or “PRC” shail mean the People’s Republic of China

“Defaulting Party” shall have the meaning set forth in Article 14.
“dollars” shall mean the legal currency of USA,
“Event of Force Majeure” shall have the meanihg as defined in Article 16-01.
“Financial Statements” shall mean the financial statements if the Kean
University, Wenzhou, including but not limited to the balance sheet, profit

and loss statement, and statement of cash flow.

“Force Majeure™ shall have the meaning set forth in Article 16.
“KU” shall mean Kean University,USA.

“KUW* shall mean the Kean University, Wenzhou.

“Legal Representative” shall mean the legal representative of the Kean
University, Wenzhou set forth in Article 9.

“Ministry of Education” shall mean the Ministry of Education of the PRC.

“Mu” shall mean the Chinese unit of area and one Mu is equivalent to 667
square meters.

“Non-defaulting Party” shall have the meaning set forth in Article 14,

“President” shall mean the President of Kean University, Wenzhou”, set
forth in Article 7-02. '
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(18)  “Provost and Vice President” sha]] mean the Provost and Vice President of
Kean University, Wenzhou, set forthin 7-03,

(19)  “Renminbi” or “RMB” shalj mean the |ega] currency of the PRC.
(20)  “USA” shal mean the United States of America,

21} “WU” shall meag Wenzhou University,

FOR WENZHOU UNIVERSITYFOR KEAN UNIVERSITY

Juanjuan LinDr, Dawood, Farahi
Vice PresidentPresident

WITNESSED BY: ,
Name: - - éfi ;
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of the next fiscal year

FOR WENZHOU UNIVERSITY FOR KEAN UNIVERSITY

Yl

Mr. Wef Xue - Phitip Connelly
Vice President Vice Presiden;
Date: September 14 2006 Date; Sef)tember 14 2006
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September 11, 2006

To Whom it May Concern:

As President of Kean University, by virtue of the powers vested in me by Article
. VII of the Kean University Board of Trustees bylaws, I hereby certify that
Mr. Philip Connelly, Vice President of Administration and Finance, is authorized
the serve as the legal representative of Kean University and to sign and authorize
” documents related to Kean University on my behalf,

incerely,

Dawood Farahi, Predident

Certified and Dated: Certified and Dated:

G Gt sl o
Patricia A. Martino Kelly (J

Notary Public Executiv¥/ Assistant
State of New Jersey Kean University
Board of Trustees
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@he Board of Trustees of Hean WUniversity upon the
Becommendation of the Farulty hereby confers upan

Eligabeth Zambrano
the degree of

Bachelor of Arts in Communication
Magna Cum Laude

with all the rights, honors, and privileges therennta appertaining.
In Blitness HWhereof the seal of the ninersity and the signatures of the
President and the Thairman of the Board of Trustees are hereunta
affixed the eleventh day of Hlay, 2006.
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Supplementary Agreement to Cooperation Agreement On the
Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University

Between Wenzhou University and Kean University

With the purpose of further clarifying Issues concerning operations and
management of Wenzhou-Kean University (hereinalter referred to as "WKU"),
after extensive consultation, Wenzhou University, PRC (hereinafter referred to as
“WU" or "the Chinese party") and Kean Universily, USA (hereinafler referred to as
"KU" or “the American party”) hereby enter into this supplementary agreement to
the Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of
Wenzhou-Kean University between Wenzhou University and Kean Universily
revised on December 23rd, 2010 as follows:

Article 1 Chancellor

1. The Chancellor shall serve a term of four (4) years, subject to assessment by
the Board of Directors of WKU on annual basis. The Board of Direclors shall
solicit opinions from both appropriate Chinese authorities and President of
KU while conducting such an annual assessment. If the Chancellor is
assessed as under qualified, the Board of Directors may serve a verbal

warning or a written warning, or dismiss him/her from office,

2. The Chancellor must work cooperatively with all parties involved, regulary
report to the Board of Direclors, and regularly communicate with the
President of KU.

Article 2 Vice-Chancellors

1. The Academic Vice-Chancellor and Provost of WKU shall take the
responsibilities and dutles of academic affairs such as curriculum design and
update, program development, teaching and research management etc., and

ensuring that WKU maintains the academic standards of KU. The Provost, as

i



chief academic officer, must report to the President of KU in all academic and
personngl matters and work cooperatively with academic units at KU to
ensure program quality, academic management consistency and
enforcement of accreditation standards of Middie States Commission for
Higher Education (MSCHE).

2. The Administrative Vice-Chancellor shall take the responsibliities and duties of
daily administrative management and service such as campus infrastruclure,
purchase and maintenance of facilities and equlpment, ralsing and
managsment of operation funds of WKU etc., ensuring support and services
lo academic activities, appropriate allocation of resources and security of
operation funds of WKL,

3. The Vice-Chancellors of WKU shall serve a term four (4) years, subject to

assessment by the Chancellor of WKU on annual basis. The Chancelior shall

solicit opinions from both appropriate Chinese authorities and President of
KU while conducting such an annual assessment.

4. The Academic Vice-Chancellor and the Administrative Vice-Chancellor shall
work cooperatively and keep all parties informed.

Articla 3  Chief Financial Officer

1. The Chief Financial Officer shall be appoinied by the Chancellor of WKU in
full consultation with the President of KU.

2. The Chief Financlal Officer shall be responsible for financial operation of WKU,
report to the Administrative Vice-Chancellor, and work under guidance of the
Administrative Vice-Chancellor.

Article 4 Faculty and Staff

1. Faculty and staff shall be recruited from three (3) sources as: 1) dispatched by
KU, or 2) recrulted globally, or 3) recruited locally in China.

2. Al faculty shall meet academic criteria of KU, as well as qualification



requirements set by Chinese authorities.

3. Standards of salaries, bonus, and benefits of the faculty sent by KU shall be
proposed by the Chancellor 1o the Board of Directors for approval, upon full
consultation with President of KU.

Article 5 Campus

Construction of the campus of WKU shall be done in consullation with the” \ -

American parly, and fully reflect archilectural ideas of the American part},r)I

Facilities of WKU shall meet the need for academic activities.

Article 6 Effectiveness

1. This Supplementary Agreement is writen in both English and Chinese
languages, and in six (6) originals of each language. Both language versions
are of equal legal effect.

2. This Supplementary Agreement shall take effect upon signing by both parties,

and on the premise that the origlnal Agreement shall enter into force.

FOR WENZHOU UNIVERSITY FOR KEAN UNIVERSITY
~1
/W \“;1““
Dr. Cai Yuangiang / Dr. Dawood Farahi \
President of Wenzhou Unlversity President of Kean University

Date of signing: December 23rd, 2010.
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Wenzhou-Kean University

Board of Directors

Chair Mr. Wang Frank Beijio (Kean University Class of '02)

Vice Chair Ms. Anne Evans Estabrook

Mr. Upendra Chivukula

Dr. Dawood Farahi (Kean University President, ex officio non-voting)
Mr. James Hynes (Kean University Class of '63) (Alternate)
Professor Qu Jia

Mr. Zheng Jianhai

Dr. Lin Junbo

Mr. John Kean Sr.

Mr. John Kean Jr.

Honorable Mr. Alexander Mirabella

Ms. Ada Morell (Kean University Board Chair, ex officio non-voting)
Mr. Qian Qiang

Professor Lu Shanzhen (Chancellor, ex officio)

Ambassador Clifford Sobel

Ms. Joan Verplanck

Mr. Xue Wei (Alternate)

Mr. Ye Xiaodong

Ms. Pan Xiaoyun (Alternate Student Representative)

Mr. Liu Zuo (Student Representative)
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Articles of Association of Wenzhou-Kean University

Article 1

Article 2

Aricle 3

Article 4

Article 5

Article 6

Anrticle 7

( Modified May 30, 2016 )

Chapter General Provisions

The Aricles of Association of Wenzhou-Kean University is formulated
pursuant to “Higher Education Law of the People's Republic of China,”
*Regulations on Chinese-Foreign Cooperation in Running Schools,” “The
Implementation Measures for the Regulations on Chinese-Foreign
Cooperation in Running Schools,” and Cooperation Agreement between
Wenzhou University and Kean University USA on the establishment of
Wenzhou-Kean University, and with the aims of clarifying educational
purposes of Wenzhou-Kean University, regulating operation and
management of Wenzhou-Kean University, and ensuring healthy
development of Wenzhou-Kean University.

The name of the university is “if 5B L %" in Chinese, and "Wenzhou-
Kean University” in English. Abbreviation of its English name is “WKU."

The domicile of Wenzhou-Kean University is 88 Daxue Rd., Li'ao Sub-
district, Ouhai District, Wenzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC.

Wenzhou-Kean University is a non-profit Chinese-American cooperatively
run educational institution established by the Chinese and American parties
to engage in educational activities with PRC Legal Person status and
limited liabihties.

The goal of Wenzhou-Kean University is to establish a world-class
international university with distinct characteristics, to cuitivate innovative,
creative, and entrepreneurial internationalized working personnel with a
global view as well as an awareness of international rules and conventions.

Wenzhou-Kean University's planned enroliment capacity shall be 5,000 full-
time students in the short run, and 10,000 (8500 of which shall be
undergraduate students) in the long run.

Levels of Education Wenzhou-Kean University offers are undergraduate
and postgraduate.

Article 8 Business scope of Wenzhou-Kean University

Article 9

Wenzhou-Kean University shall mainly offer full-time higher education
degree programs, and also offer an array of select professional training and
certificate courses (subject to approval by and registration with relevant
authorities), carry out activities related with higher education and research,
undertake academic exchange and cooperation with domestic and
international universities and institutions, and engage in other activities
approved by relevant authorities.

Major disciplines offered by Wenzhou-Kean University are within the

1



Article 10

Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

Aricle 14

following Chinese Ministry of Education Categories: Economics,
Management, Literature, Engineering, Arts, Education, Science and
Technology, etc. Wenzhou-Kean University shall establish and adjust its
disciplines according to social demands and the mission and purpose of the
institution in accordance with the academic judgment of the Vice Chancellor
for Academic Affairs under the direction of the President of Kean USA.

Chapter I Funds and Principles of Property Management

Capital and Operation Funds

Wenzhou government invests RMB1.5 billion Yuan for construction of the
campus and facilities. Operation funds of Wenzhou-Kean University shall
come from tuition and fees, government subsidies, income generated from
the activities within the university's business scope, donation, and other
legal income.

Assets Management

11-1  Wenzhou-Kean University shall enjoy legal person property rights to all

of its properties in accordance with relevant laws.

11-2  Wenzhou-Kean University shall assume responsibilities for its debts

within the limit of the volume of its assets

11-3  As the user’s right to the land, the campus building, facilities and

equipment of Wenzhou-Kean University are all invested by the
Chinese party, the American party makes no claim on such assets.

Acceptance of Donation

12-1  Wenzhou-Kean University shall establish a unit to deal with issues

related to acceptance of donation and to supervise the use of donations
to the University. Such unit shall be accountable to the Board.

12-2  Upon establishment of the Unit for acceptance of donations, the Unit

supervisor shall submit proposed rules for review by the Chancellor in
consultation with the Executive Vice Chancellor, and shall make a
recommendation to the Board.

Chapter Board of Directors

Board of Directors shall be established pursuant to "Regulations on
Chinese-Foreign  Cooperation in Running Schools”™ and “The
Implementation Measures for the Regulations on Chinese-Foreign
Cooperation in Running Schools,” and except where prescribed otherwise
herein, shall be the highest authority of the Wenzhou-Kean University, and
determine all major issues of Wenzhou-Kean University.

The Board of Directors shall consist of sixteen (16) voting Directors
including the Director elected by the students. , Eight (8), including the

2



Article 15

Article 16

Article 17

Article 18

18-1

18-2

Chancellor as ex officio Director, shall be appointed by the the Wenzhou
Municipal Government, and seven (7) shall be appointed by the the Kean
USA Board of Trustees. One (1) voting Director and one (1} alternate shall
be a member of the student body elected by the students at large. Each
Party may appoint one alternate Director to participate in deliberation and
voting only if one or more of that Party's voting Directors are not present.
Two (2) student directors shall be elected by the students; the primary
student director shall have one (1) vote and the alternate student director
shall serve as non-voting. The Student directors shall attend and paricipate
in the meetings and business of the Board of Directors except those
specifically prohibited by law, or these Articles. This exclusion shall include
but is not limited to personnel and litigation matters. The Board shall have a
Chairperson and a Vice Chairperson, the combination of which shall be
representative of both the PRC and USA. If the Chairperson is a Chinese
appointment then the Vice Chairperson shall be an American appointment
and vice versa. List of the Board members shall be submitted to all
approval authorities as necessary for record.

After leaving Board membership a director who has served a full four (4)
year term and who has provided outstanding service shall be eligible for
nomination as a Director Emeritus. Nominations for Director Emeritus may
come from the Wenzhou Municipal Government or the Kean USA Board of
Trustees and forwarded to the Board of Directors for consideration. The
honor shall be bestowed upon a Board of Directors’ vote in accordance with
the voting rules prescribed in these Articles of Association. A Director
Emeritus shall serve for a term of two (2) years and may be re-elected by
the Board of Directors without term limits. While it is a non-voting position,
the Director Emeritus may be invited to participate in all Board meetings
and functions and may be called upon to assist the Board and the
Chancellor in those matters where the individual's interest, experience and
expertise will best serve the University. The number of such positions is at
the discretion of the Board, however the honor will be reserved for
individuals with a record of distinguished service.

Directors shall serve a term of four (4) years. Directors may be re-appointed
to serve consecutive terms. Appointing party may replace Directors of that
side at any time, and shall appoint a successor in case a vacancy should
occur.

The Directors shall exercise all their power and duties for the interest of
Wenzhou-Kean University, and in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.

Except as otherwise specified herein, the Board of Directors shall exercise
the following powers:

to approve the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson;

to appoint or dismiss the Chancellor;

3



18-3

18-4

18-5

186

18-7
Article 19

19-1

19-2

19-3

19-4

19-5

19-6

19-7

to amend the Aricles of Association and approve fundamental rules and
regulations of Wenzhou-Kean University,

to approve development strategies and annual work plans of
Wenzhou-Kean University;

to raise operational funds and approve annual financial budget and
final accounts of Wenzhou-Kean University;

to make decisions on division, merger or termination of Wenzhou-Kean
University, and

other authorities this Articles of Association stipulates.

Rules of Procedure

Board meetings include regular meetings and interim meetings.
Regular meetings shall be held at least once a year. Interim meetings
may be summoned based on a proposal made by at least one-third
(1/3) of voting Directors, but that meeting will not have affect unless a
quorum is achieved in accordance with section 19-4.

Board meetings shall be summoned and presided over by the
Chairperson; when the Chairperson cannot or fails to perform the duty,
the Vice Chairperson shall summon and preside over such a meeting;
and when the Vice Chairperson cannot or fails to perform the duty, a
Director jointly elected by no less than two thirds (2/3) of the members
shall summon and preside over such a meeting.

The date, time and venue for each Board meeting shall be determined
by mutual consent of the President of Kean USA and the Board
Chairperson of Wenzhou-Kean University, and the Board members
shall be notified of the time and venue in writing vial mail, facsimile,
telegram or email at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting.

A Board meeting requires a quorum of ten voting (10) directors present
at the meeting. Resolutions adopted at a Board meeting where such
quorum is not reached shall be void.

The Board may pass a resolution according to written votes by each of
the Directors out of necessity, but not without prior notice
acknowledged in writing by the Wenzhou-Kean Chancellor and the
Kean USA President

Minutes of the Board meetings shall be approved by a vote of the
Board at the following Board meeting. Minutes of Board meetings and
resolutions adopted by the Board shall be filed and kept at the domicile
of the Wenzhou-Kean University.

Board resolutions on the following matters shall be adopted only after
consented to by at least two-thirds (2/3) of all voting Directors (i.e. at
least ten voting Directors):

4



19-8

Article 20

Article 21

Article 22

221

22-2

22-3

19-7-1 appointment and/or dismissal of the Chancellor, Executive
Vice Chancellor or Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs; and
with respect to the Executive Vice Chancellor and Vice
Chancellor for Academic Affairs, such vote shall require prior
written recommendation from the President of Kean USA:

19-7-2 appointment of the Legal Representative of the Wenzhou-
Kean University;

19-7-3 amendment to the Articles of Association;

19-7-4 approval of development strategy and fundamental rules of
Wenzhou-Kean University except where specified otherwise
herein; and

19-7-5 division, merger, or termination of Wenzhou-Kean University.

19-7-6  Notwithstanding anything within these Articles of Association
to the contrary, all matters related to academic standards
generally and the American Accreditation Agency Standards
of Excellence specifically are expressly the purview of Kean
USA and shall be handled as judged appropriate by the
Wenzhou-Kean Executive Vice Chancellor and Vice
Chancellor of Academic Affairs under the direction of the
President of Kean USA or his designee,

Resolutions on matters other than those described above shall be
adopted by more than half vote of the Directors present and voting at the
meeting.

Chapter The Legal Representative

Legal Representative of Wenzhou-Kean University shall be appointed from
the Board Chairperson or the Chancellor, as decided by the Board of
Directors.

If the Legal Representative has not been appointed by the Board of
Directors within three (3) months, the Board Chairpersen shall automatically
assume the office.

.Chapter V The Chancellor and the Vice-Chancellors
Chancellor

Wenzhou-Kean University shall have a Chancellor, who shall be jointly
nominated by both Parties in full consultation with the President of
Kean University USA, and appointed by the Board of Directors upon
approval of Chinese examination and approval authorities.

The Chancellor shall exercise his/fher power and duty pursuant to the
“*Regulations on Chinese-Foreign Cooperation in Running Schools,”
within the scope authorized by the Board of Directors.

The Chancellor shall serve a term of four (4) years, subject to annual
5



22-4

assessments by the Board of Directors during his/her term of office.

The Chancellor along with the Legal Representative if someone other
than the Chancellor must work cooperatively with all parties involved
and regularly report to the Board of Directors and communicate
regularly with the President of Kean University USA.

Article 23 Vice-Chancellor

23-1

23-2

23-3

23-4

23-5

Wenzhou-Kean University shall have Vice-Chancellors to assist the
Chancellor to carry out daily academic and administrative
management. The University may appeint additional Vice-Chancellors
to meet the need arising from its development provided that any
individual given responsibilities related to academic matters shall report
to the Kean USA President or his designee, and shall not be appointed
without prior written recommendation from the same.

The Executive Vice Chancellor and Academic Vice-Chancellor shall be
nominated by the President of Kean University USA in full consultation
with the Chinese Party, and appointed by the Chancellor or the Board
of Directors; and the Administrative Vice-Chancellors shall be
nominated by the Chinese Party in full consultation with the President
of Kean University USA, and appointed by the Chancellor or the Board
of Directors.

The Vice-Chancellors shall serve as at-will employees, subject to
annual assessments by the Chancellor during their term of office. The
Chancellor shalf solicit opinions from both appropriate Chinese
autherities and the President of Kean University USA while conducting
such annual assessments.

The Academic Vice-Chancellor shall take the responsibilities and
duties of academic affairs such as curriculum design and update,
program development, teaching and research management etc., and
ensuring that the University maintains Kean University standards
including but not limited to the American accreditation agency's
standards of excellence. The Academic Vice-Chancellor, as chief
academic officer, must report to the President of Kean USA or his
designee in all academic and personnel matters and work
cooperatively with academic units at Kean USA to ensure program
quality, academic management consistency and enforcement of
accreditation standards. The Chancellor and the Board shall respect
the Academic Vice-Chancellor's authority with this regard.

The Administrative Vice-Chancellors shall take the responsibilities and

duties of daily administrative management and service such as

campus infrastructure, purchase and maintenance of facilities and

equipment, raising and management of operation funds etc., ensuring

support and services to academic activities, appropriate allocation of

resources- other than those necessary for the proper delivery of
6
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Article 24

Article 25

Article 26

Article 27

Article 28

Article 29

academic programs and services, and security of operation funds of
the University.

The Vice-Chancellors shall work cooperatively and keep all parties
informed.

Chancellor's Administrative Meeting

The University adopts the practice of Chancellor's administrative meetings,
where the members of senior management discuss matters with regard to
daily operation and make corresponding decisions.

Chapter VI Academic Management

In order to ensure that the awarding of Kean University USA degrees at
Wenzhou-Kean University meets the requirements and academic quality of
Kean USA and its accreditation authority, the Vice Chancellor for Academic
Affairs and the President of Kean USA have the authority to determine the
academic standards and curriculum, and the Vice Chancellor for Academic
Aifairs is fully responsible for implementing these standards. Academic
management of the University shall be organized and conducted by the
Vice-Chancellor for Academic Affairs. All academic policies, procedures,
and grading systems shall comply with Kean University standards including
but not limited to the standards and requirements of American higher
education accreditation. The Board of Direciors fully respects this
academic right of the Kean University USA President and the Vice
Chancellor for Academic Affairs.

Academic management and the selection of faculty to provide the
instruction at Wenzhou-Kean University shall be consistent with current
practices in place at Kean University USA.

Wenzhou-Kean University shall be subject to assessment and accreditation
by Chinese educational administrative authorities and American
accreditation authorities.

Wenzhou-Kean University shall establish academic organizations such as
an academic senate and degree appraisal committee, which shall ensure
the intellectual autonomy of the University by playing the advisory,
deliberative roles for decision-making in areas of academic program
development, academic assessment, teaching and research planning, and
faculty professional development, etc.

The University shall grant to qualified students academic certificates and
degrees of Wenzhou-Kean University, and degrees of Kean University in
compliance with the accreditation standards of Middle States Commission
for Higher Education (MSCHE).

Chapter VI Democratic Management and Monitoring



Article 30 The University shall establish CPC parly organization pursuant to the
Constitution of the Communist Party of China to deal with party affairs.

Article 31 The University shall have Union and other democratic organizations, and
hold Congress of Representatives of Employees to facilitate democratic
management and monitoring, so as to protect employees’ legal rights.

Article 32  The Congress of Representatives of Employees shall perform the following
functions:

32-1 to nominate candidates to attend Board meeting as observers;

32-2 to

review education policies, development planning, academic

managerial regulations, and budget on major expenditures of the
university;

32-3 to offer advice and proposals on working conditions, rules and
regulations concerning rights and interest of faculty and staff such as
rules about reward and punishment, promotion, payment standards

etc.

Chapter Vlll Student Affairs

Aricle 33  Rights and obligations of the students

3341 Students of Wenzhou-Kean University shall have the following rights:

33-1-1

33-1-2

33-1-3

3314

33-1-5

33-2
obligations:

33-2-1

33-2-2

to participate in academic, social and cultural activities scheduled
by the University, and to utilize the University’s resources that are
in compliance with the educational cultivation objectives;

to receive fair evaluation on academic achievement, and to obtain
corresponding certificates and degree diplomas after meeting
graduation requirements;

to file appeals with the University or educationat authority with
appropriate jurisdiction against academic or disciplinary decisions
made by the University;

to file appeals or initiate legal proceedings against any violation of
their legitimate personal or property rights by the University or its
employees,; and

other rights as stipulated in laws and regulations.

Students of the University shall undertake the following

to abide by the laws and the University rules, protect the
reputation of the University, work hard and complete their degrees:

to complete the course in Chinese national situation and Culture

8



as required by the Chinese Ministry of Education in order to earn
the Wenzhou-Kean University Chinese degree

33-2-3 pay tuition and fees in compliance with the University regulations,

and fulfill obligations related to scholarship awarding;

33-2-4 other obligations as stipulated in laws and regulations.

Article 34

34-1

34-2

34-3

Article 35

35-1

35-2

Regulations on student affairs

Regulations on student affairs cover the areas of registration and
student status, code of conduct, academic regulations, financial aids
and scholarship, and student societies, etc. Where appropriate for
compliance with the rules and regulations stipulated by the Chinese
Ministry of Education, Wenzhou-Kean University shall supplement the
Kean University Code of Conduct. Any such supplement shall be
developed in collaboration with the Kean University USA division of
Student Affairs to ensure that Wenzhou-Kean University remains in
compliance with the Middie States Commission on Higher Education
standards.

Students shall simultaneously register with both Wenzhou-Kean
University and Kean University. Registration with Wenzhou-Kean
University shall be conducted by the University in compliance with all
relevant laws and policies; while registration at Kean University USA
shall be conducted by Kean University. The University shall assist
students in registration with Kean University, and related student
services.

Rules and policies in student affairs shall fully safeguard the legitimate
rights and interests of the students, and shall be conducive to
improvement of students’ abilities of self-instruction, self-management,
self-service and self-discipline.

Students societies

Definition: student societies are organization within the University
initiated by the students with the goals of self-service, self-
enhancement, self-management or academic enhancement.

Students shall apply for registration of their societies with the
University. Only registered student societies are allowed to use in its
name the terms of “BM B2 X¥" or "Wenzhou-Kean University,” or
abbreviation of the Chinese and English name of the University, or its
logo. The University shall have the right to require any student society
not officially registered and recognized by the University to remove the
above described Chinese or English names, abbreviations or logo of
the University from its organization name or any documents or publicity
materials, and reserves all legal rights.



35-3  Students societies shall abide by university regulations, the Student

Code of Conduct and social norms, as well as protect the University’s
reputation when carrying out their activities.

35-4 Student Government

Article 36

Article 37

Article 38

Article 39

Article 40

Atticle 41

35--1  Definition: Student Government is a student organization
established in compliance with laws, university regulations and its
bylaws, with the aims of expressing the opinions and safeguarding
the interests of the students and serving the university community.

35--2  The roles and functions: the Student Government is an
autonomous organization comprised of students elected by the
student body at-large, which functions as a bridge and bond
between the University and the students, and serves as a
component of democratic leadership for the University.

35-3 The Student Government implements democratic management
within the organization

Chapter IY Financial Management

Wenzhou-Kean University shall establish sound financial and accounting
systems pursuant to Chinese laws and regulations. The University shall
adopt Chinese accounting system and procedure, in compliance with the
internationally Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the maximum
extent allowed by relevant Chinese accounting laws and regulations.

Wenzhou-Kean University shall open a Renminbi account or accounts with
a bank located in China, and open and use a foreign exchange account in
compliance with foreign exchange regulations of PRC. All funds of the
University shall be deposited in a bank account or accounts in the name of
Wenzhou-Kean University, in compliance with Chinese laws and accounting
regulations.

The accounting year of Wenzhou-Kean University shall begin on January
1st and end on December 31st.

All accounting records, vouchers, books and statements of Wenzhou-Kean
University shall be made and kept in Chinese and English. The accounting
books and financial statements of WKU shall be kept in Renminbi, but
certain data shall be additionally recorded in US dollars where appropriate.

The entire revenue of Wenzhou-Kean University shall be completely
dedicated to the operation and development of the University. Neither party
of the cooperation seeks profit from the operation of the University.

Chapter X Amendment to The Articles of Association

Amendment may be made to these Articles of Association when one of the
following occurs:

10



Article 42

Article 43

Article 44

Article 45

Article 46

Article 47

Article 48

Article 49

the Cooperation Agreement is amended and consequently causes
discrepancy between the Agreement and the Articles of Association; or

at least three (3) Directors or the Wenzhou-Kean Chairperson and
Kean USA President jointly propose an amendment to these Articles of
Association.

Amendment to the Articles of Association shall be consented by at least
two-thirds (2/3) of the voting Directors, and approved by the authority that
originally approved the Articles of Association.

Chapter XI Amendment, Termination and Liquidation

Any change in the domicile, Chancellor, legal representative and business
scope shall be verified or approved by appropriate authorities. The
University shall undertake amendment registration with relevant authorities,
when any of above described changes occurs.

Termination of the university shall be in compliance with the “Regufations
on Chinese-Foreign Cooperation in Running Schools”, the Implementation
Measures of Regulations on Chinese-Foreign Cooperation in Running
Schools and the Cooperation Agreement.

If there are still students enrolled in any programs provided by the
university, who have not finished their courses at the time of the university's
termination, both parties must adopt necessary measures to ensure that
termination of the university shall not cause substantial influence to these
students in completing their courses in Wenzhou-Kean University and being
granted corresponding degrees.

Wenzhou-Kean University shall apply to the examination and approval
authority for termination when one or more of the causes for termination
stipulated in the Cooperation Agreement occur, and undertake lawful
liquidation under the guidance of the appropriate authorities. Liquidation
shall be conducted a manner that causes the least influence on current
students.

Wenzhou-Kean University shall protect legal rights of the employees and
students when it comes into liquidation.

On or before the first day of classes each fall, Kean USA shall advise
Wenzhou-Kean of the financial obligation incurred by Kean USA for salary
and benefits for employees contracted for assignment to Wenzhou-Kean.
Wenzhou-Kean shall within fourty five (45) days of receipt, escrow the
entire amount necessary to fulfill the contractual obligations of Kean USA.
In the event of termination, Wenzhou-Kean shall pay any and all
outstanding contractual obligations with these funds.

Wenzhou-Kean University shall go through cancellation procedure with the
registration authority after completion of liquidation.

11



Article 50

Article 51

Article 52

Article 53

Article 54

Chapter XII Miscellaneous

The Articles of Association are governed by applicable PRC laws, and shall
be construed in compliance with PRC laws. In the event of any discrepancy
between this Aricles of Association and PRC laws, the PRC laws shall
prevail.

Wenzhou-Kean University shall make university regulations in compliance
with the Articles of Association. In an event of any discrepancy between
university regulations and these Articles of Association, the Aricles of
Association shall prevail.

The Articles of Association are written in both Chinese and English
languages. Both language versions shall be of equal force and effect.

The right of interpretation of these Articles of Association rests with the
Board of Directors.

The Articles of Association shall become effective upon approval by the
approving authority.
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WENZHOU-KEAN
UNIVERSITY

BAEBAF0ISERIE (EHENRH)
Budget of Fiscal Year 2018 ( Based on Cost Center)

Wii: T Currency Unit: RMB 000
HMAA Budgetary Revenues
EEMESE S Anmual Appropriation 193,830
2 iR TR Campus Construction Fund 150,000
T A&t Total Budget Revenues 343,830
Fo A 5% &% Other Funds Available
AR =M K244 Camy-forward from previous years' appropriation and grants 3,166
Jp#Eh 5 tnitial Fund 15,565
Hir 3t 4 Free Reserve 3,839
Fl 42 19 ik & 5544 Camy-forward of Campus Construction Fund 16,291
TTH ¥ & Total Funds Avallable
BTt & & it Total Funds Avallable 384,692
AR F Y Budgetary Expenditures
ﬂl'l‘}\ﬂﬁfﬂl?ﬁﬁl&ﬁ’:ﬁﬂﬁ-ﬁ‘ 106,378
|Kean USA assigned personnck, reimbursements and other related casls 2
il A BY B8NS B Salary and Benefits of Chinese Personnel 45,403
{TELSH 2 3 Administrative Expenditures 5.860
Ki8h 4 5525 3 Maintancice and logistical support 15214
B4 W4T % Equipment and famishing 1918
L L % Academic 5419
0k To{REE % Swudent Affairs 3,920
1 20'tE 10 Marketing and public velations 4,020
{ri ¥ IE4R 1T suppont 5742
T 320428 Library and digital resources 1,992
4:42 44 4R E} Laboratones 2,068
Lk %15 Other funds defined by non-govermment grants 1,259
R g8 3 Contingency 2,000
el 2 HE % 1Y Capiral Expenditure- Campus Construction 166,291
¥ & & Total Budget Expenditures 369,443
M E R (Budgetary SurpluyDeficht)
RN T &N Budget Surpluses/Deficits before Adjustment 15248
217201520175 DRI 4 BT Curriculem Developmentfee for AY2015/16-AY XN 718 11,732
IR %K Anticipated Adjustment to Annual Appropriation 11,732
RS MY Budget Surpluses/Deficits after Adjusiment 15,248

Ee 20185FIE M T AR FH gy C BT M BUSIOE 207 SR, IR IE IR PRI AL T BT Fok. [Ritt 5]

Note: The Budgei of FY2018 before Adjustment 1s cipiled based on the approved annual appropnalion by he governmenl, 5o the additional payment request for curnculum

development fee is listed separately. funded by anticipated increase of annual appropriation. which shall be officialized after formalities.



WENZHOU-KEAN
UNIVERSITY

BABEBRRFNIBFEWME (ERESHFME)
WEKU Budget on Fiscal Year 2018 (Based on Line lems)

b T Currency Unit: RMB 000
TR A Budgetary Revenues
FUF R Government Fund 84 890
TP & Special Account Fund 109,030
[ ¥ ikt 1% 2 Campus Construction Fund 150,000
THMBCA A T+ Total Budget Revenues 343,830
HAb B &3 H Other Funds Available
FULTT 0% 1 #2544 Cany-forward from previous year 5,166
JFAM 9% 45 Initial Fund 15,565
YAV IES Free Reserve 3,839
VPR AR F B 1 & 254 Carry-forward of Campus Construction Fund 16,291
A& Total Funds Available
P 8 & &t Total Funds Avallable 384,692
TR Budgetary Expenditures
5 AR ##21 F) Salary and Bencfits of Chinese Personnel 45,403
Ly AR FEHI R Salary and Benefils of Kean Assigned Personnel 88,400
S+ 23 % Office Supplies 1,178
25l 97 % 9 Consulting & Service 1,739
7K % Water & Electricity 4,810
194k 5 F % Property management Service 5,320
FHLUR 9% Rent 2,180
i % Travel 8,383
A2 E (1) %] Travel Abroad 560
HEdE 140 9 Maintenance and Repair 8,606
A HIH 19 Marenals 2,142
£ 414k 5% Owsourcing 330
T.£2#8% Labor Union Funds 1,696
2% ML i7HES T # Vehicle Maintenance 575
+ I i@ AL AL % & 001 Other Goods and Service 20,891
% & Stipend 2,550
JEAbEE A-PE 2] Capital Expenditure- daily operation 8,394
|4l 2 ¥ 2 1 Capiral Expenditure- Campus Construction 166,291
TS M & Total Budget Expenditures 369,447
TR &R (Budgetary Surplus/Deficit)
W RN 2R Budget Surpluses/Deficits before Adjustment 15,245
£1'72015-201 7R F IR 9 M Cemiculum Developmenifee for AY2015/16-AY2017:18 11,732
T 19 R HO I A Anticipated Adjustment 1o Govemment Asds 11,732
Iiﬂﬁﬁﬁ#'&ﬁﬂﬂ Budget Surpluses/Deficits after Adjustment 15,245

Tk 2008FIE A BRSPS PR L T HER) F IS BULMA A SR RMEBEQ RN SR BTN T ok, Py v

Note: The Budget of FY2018 before Adjustment is empiled based on the approved annual appropriation by the govemment so the additional payment request for curmiculum

development fee is listed separately, funded by anticipated 1nerease of annual appropriation, which shall be officialized alter formatities.
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Hit#HE

AUDITORS REPORT

RFTIE (HF) [2018] B4 00242 5
Jonten (Zhe) [2018] Audit NO.00242

B ERAFLEHEH,

To: Board of Directors of Wenzhou-Kean University

—. #Hi{E R Audit opinion

BRMNFHTEROEMNERRE (UMTHER “BF” ) HUFRE, 8F
2017 £F 12 A 31 HRAHRFRAMRMASRER (AFET) . 2017 £EQ
EHWAXBREMBAXZ LR (A¥IBEFT) . AFXURAIHEE (AEEM
LAB W 55 1R R BV .

We have audited the aitached financial statements of Wenzhou-Kean University
hereafter referred fo as "WKU’, which comprise Consolidated balance sheels as at December
313! of 2017 and Balance Sheet of Daily Operation As of 31 Dec 2017, Consolidated Statement
of Activities of the year ended December 31t 2017 and Statement of Activities of Daily
Operation For the Year Ended 31% Dec 2017, Consolidated Statement of Expenditure of the
year ended December 31% 2017 and Statement of Expenditures of Daily Operation For the
Year Ended 31% Dec 2017 , and explanatoty notes to the financial statements as mentioned

above.

BATAA, BMNEBRXFMMERRERTERTEHR (BEEZY &4

BEY « (RFELETHE) REMERSTHENNRERS, HL. TERMIM
T&RHE 20174 12 A 31 BOMSREAR 2017 EENFLVRREFXES.

In our opinion, the financial stalements give a true and integrated view of financial

position of Wenzhou-Kean University as al 31 December of 2017, and of its financial

performance and other relevant information for the year then ended in accordance with



P

Chinese Accounting Standards for Public Instifutions,Financial Regulations for Higher

RiEEITIMELS PR JONTEN CPAS

Education Institutions and Accounting Principles for Higher Education Institutions.

—. FeRHE & LKERE The basis of forming Audit opinion

BNER P BEM&HIPETHENORERT T FHIE. FitmEbs “F
ML A FRRE TR T BE— PR T RANEX SR T HRE.
IR R E RS v MERAE R T I, BRIV TRE, HBIT TRLERE S I
Hip3R4E. RAVBE, BOFBRNFHEBERAS . B4, ARBHEITELR
#t 7 Zat.

We conducted our audition in accordance with the Chinese Certified public
Accountants in the auditing standards. The responsibility for Audit of Financial
Statement in the audit reports further elaborates on our responsibilities under these
standards. According to China code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, we are
independent of WKU and performing other responsibilities in respect of professional
ethics. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide the basis for our audit opinicn.

=, BEENMEMBRFI/E Management Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

REEERARER (FEERMEHE) . (BEER&WHIE) R
EWLTEMOAERMEZRR, EREMWARRB, FRit, PATHEDP L
BiAREH, UEMFRIIFES T RESEHRIBMERER.

WKU management is responsible for preparing the financial statements
according to the requirements of the Accounting Standards for Public Institutions so
as to achieve a fair presentation and to design, implement and maintain the
necessary internal control so that the financial stalements are free from material
misstatement due to fraud or error.

ERMTFREN, EEEMTTLMRFORELERD, FZARERY
Bi%, BRIFFARTREEDRE. K LEERITHMLINEHERE.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing

the sustainability of WKU, and applying the going-concern assumption unless the



EExEE

management plans to liquidate WKU, discontinue operations or have no other realistic

P FRIZ LT ITHE K BT JONTEN CPAS

choice.
M., EMETHMAIFEIE  Auditors’ Responsibility

BNV BAFENUERREGRSIAFED TRESERIHNE RER
FWSERE, HFHALEFHERANFIHRE. SERERBKFHRIE, B
FA BRI R B IHEM AT B TR — E XS IREAN SR R Ak
BT HEEERFE MRECEMAER LM 2R TR AN SRR EH
FERBEMZFRFEHORFRE, WEEAABREREKRN,

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue audit reports that contain audit opinions. A reasonable assurance
is a high standard assurance, however it could not ensure that an audit performed in
accordance with the auditing standards will always be found when a material
misstatement exists. Misstatement could caused due to fraud or error, should
reasonable expectation on such a misstatement, or the combine of misstatements, is
likely to influence the economical decision made by the user of the financial statement

such misstatement should normally be considered as material.

EEREENMTF T THENEED, RIOSBTARE, FREBLS
§to FIRS, RATBRH)ATLAT L.

During the audit process that under the auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional suspicion. Meanwhile we also need

to perform the following procedure:

(1) RHFIPM AT RESHERSHOM SRBERBRAR, RitAE
FEE VHEF UK R, FRRRL ELMFIER, FAREFIHERL
RER. BTEETRBESEE. g, WERR. BEERERE T RS
ZE REAAHTRESBMNEREHHNAEBETRERABTHREIRNE
REFTRET NG -

(1) Identify and evaluate the risk of misstatement of financial statements due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to countermeasure these risks

and obtain reasonable evidence to fulfil such an objective as the basis of audit

3
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opinion. As fraud may include collusion, forgery, willful omission, misrepresentation or
override of internal control, the risk of not discovering a material misstatement due to
fraud is higher than the risk of failing to detect a material misstatement resulting from
a mistake.

(2) TRSSEHHXAOABER, YR SHFETERF.

(2) Understand the intemnal controls related to auditing in order to design

appropriate auditing procedures.

(3) M EERER SHBERNE I ENE L ST RAARKEN &2
.

(3 ) Appraise the appropriateness of the accounting policies selected by
management and the reasonableness of making accounting estimates and related

disclosures.

(4) MEERERAFSLERIMNMSEUBLER. AN, REXBHE
HER, RTRFEESHEEER AL EREENERRERREHFEER
RTBERBRE L. WRBEMNBEERIAFEERNTHEN, FitENESR
BENEFHREPRBBRREAZEBVFERDPEXEE: NWREETE
4 RNELARRFELABER. RMNPWELETHEEFT IHRE ATHRBMEEL.
AT, RRHOFBBRERTRPBBETEFLEEE.

(4) Reach a conclusion of whether the managements’ appropriateness to using
the going concern assumplion. At the same time, based on the audit evidence
obtained, it concludes with respect to whether there is material uncertainty about the
matters or circumstances that may cause major doubts about the going concern
ability of WKU. If we conclude that there is a significant uncertainty, the auditing
standards require us to draw the attention of the users of the statements to the
relevant disclosures in the financial statements in the audit report. If disclosures are
not sufficient, we should issue an unqualified opinion. Our conclusion is based on ths
information available up to the date of the audit report. However, future events or

conditions may result in WKU not being able to continue as a going concern.

(5) MM FHREMNBEFIR. SUHNE (BEED) , HPFAWER
REB N RRPARL BB
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(5) he overall presentation, structure and content(include disclosure Jof the
financial statements are reviewed and the financial statements are assessed as to

whether the transaclion and events are fairly reflected.
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WENZHOU-KEAN
UNIVERSITY

M HESHAEF RIRR
Consolidaied Balance She#t As of 31" Dec 2017

"ij"q

ARG
Lol 7|

8 ~ASSETS MiEHote 2016-12.34 2017-12-31 AWML R LABILTIES S HET ASSETS #itNote 2018-12-31
RS Currant Asssts WA A Cwrant Lisbilities
9 I Monwlary aesets (Al 95705377 53 76.738.047 48 WEM Kk Shor-tem loans
SITHK Roles recevable BB Aecounts Payable e 30,183.589 74 8020 074,70
R R S P Acoounts Payable o Spedal
2R Accounis receivable Finangal Accoynt §2.556 61 73,320 00
SHWB Advances T2 1.24].658 98 18,545 00 Ef!R 8% Salares and benefiis payab'a 208,511 78 191,439 84
¢ &% Inventcries ARR D2 Tanes sayable 79 2.567,061 81 T.005.256 48
Tk P2 4L K Othar recenvaties 13 2.201.406 23 112,418 36 R M Other payadlas 10 11.048671.76 BEISRATA
A HE™ fit Sub-total of curesnt asuats 99, 141001 04 78.48%.008.84 A N M Seb-tetal of eurrant Liabiltias i TR AT PRAGE, P04 7T
M B A Non-currant Assers &M MR Non-current Lisblktiat
¥ FI#% & Long-Lerm invasimont T4 2,000,000-00 2,000,000 00 KR B Long-term Joany
[kt il
Frred assats - book valus s 32527358 84 43933297 03 SWAAMAit Sub-tatal of non-current Habllities 800 000
M. Rkl Lass:
Accumated depreciaion 847452258 1041182423 AR A TOTAL LIABILITIES e MATEINAT . TOSSATMTE
WEEe R
Fixed assats - nat vaka 2605283818 33.501.472 80 R~ NET ASSETS
S T 17 Construchin i progress. 78 907.934. 247 14 1,099.857,855 32 Wil Underaking funds L& 3,652,500 08 1,838,710 08
[Lel-Lg 1]
Intangible 3513 book value nr THA.754 07 5.161 67t £9 g ™ 4 & Non-cument assets funds LRV 908,031,833 94 1077 852847 S
o Tii A
Less: accumutaled amartzation 1.363,770.20 3.26F 182 67 BRETALS Furds carred lonaged ERE] B3,928.923 4 %0.778.58353
KB
Intacgibia asdels - A0t vatue 5.451.023 07 6.900.509 22
SR g~ N
Sub-total of nan-currdnt assats 247,435 107,98 1,142,259.637.34 W85t Total Net Astets $95.814 157658 1,141,471,941.48

B~ 1 it TOTAL ASSETS 4,041,595,549 13 LIN 170646 30 SHEDESHTHOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 1,041,585,549.11 1,221.128.648.13
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Consolidated Statement of Activities For the Period Ended 31* Dac 2017

E tems MiENote . FY2018
@AMH Revenue 714
I-E BN Annwal approgriation 125,600,497.70 186,733,326.40
FotB¥LA Other income 67,521,554.63 140,825,210.02
A fritTotal Revenua 193,122,052.33 327.658,536.47
XHAB Expanses ¥i%
MIER L™ E on ad | 0,952,778 29 130,129,404 31
11 £8 Expanses on research 159,302 92 339,439.34
17 217HE %18 Expensas on admislairation 32,748,491.02 38,518 879 06
AR £ B Expansas on maniangnce and logistical s 15,259,207.33 17,071,069 15
K& ¥ Other expensas 92 692,837 24 165.561,874.65
F it Total Expanses 221.812,618.80 351.621.666.51
FEEATLME Nel income of the Year -26,690.564 47 -23.963.130.09
1o: LRI Plus: Balance of Swplus of pravicus year 116,270,988, 17 87.580.423.7
MHHE & Ending Balance of Suplus 7,580,433, 70 63,617,233.61
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f~ASSETE

VLR BEA" Cutrest hupsts
BT & Mooatary assels
T Notas recawabia
FIU B S Accounts receiveble
FHED Advances
£ Y dnvenicries
ILERFL B Other recaivables
BB # b Sub-total of currant assets
SRS MS Non-current Assats

K R B8 Long-term investmant
(s B sty
Fixad assels - book value

#: RatEn
Less: Accumulated depraciation
TEA- 306 311
Fixed assels - nel vakie

£ 4 T.#} Censtruction in progress.
Kegm R
Intangible assets- hook value

A RibAm
Less: accumulated amortization
BB
Intang:ble assets - net value

RN Pt
Sub-total of nen-current assets

B it TOTAL ASSETS

WENZHOU-KEAN
UNIVERSITY

01TEEREHMR(ARIETD 12810

Bsalance Shesl of Daily Operation As of 31" Dec, 2017

L)
1%

Fitthiote 2016-52-31 2017-12.31 AMRNE” LABILITIES & NET ASSETS

MiENote 2016-12-31 2017:12-2%
W AH Current Lisbliities
&1 50,423,258.66 57,232 219.91 HFIA B Shon-lerm loans
H{1¥%k& Accounts Payable 270,450.00 $8.100.00
LR E G P 3 Accoynts Payable o Special
Financiz Account 62 556.81 73,320.00
1.240.658 18 18.545.00 124 1R LH#M Salanss and banefits payable 20851175 191,498.84
1 7 & Yaxes payable 2,567.961.61 7.005.258.40
52 843.328.82 530.5¢7.13 H bk & Omar payables 368385501 3.380 284.29
5.7, 24076 58.081,312.04 Wik %4 Sub-total of current Lisbilitias 6.773.135.88 10,743,452.60
Fe s 71 (4 Non-current Liablities.
2,000,000.00 2 OO0 O D6 EFHE Long-les= Bans.
31.785.734.84 43.191.673,03 FRihR A Subtotal of nan-current liabilities
6,106,535 66 9.976.692.23 N EiE TOTAL LIABILITIES 8§,173,13588 10,7438 459.60
25679.139.18 33 214979.80 B~ NET ASSETS
5959986 73 1,233 #5000 F & Undartaking hunds 3,653,500 06 3.83871008
7814.794.07 9.181.671.89 R AR & Non-cument assels funds 40,087,037 78 43355977 02
A Ikt Carry-forward of annual
1.363.770.20 2,281,162 67 appropriation 4207371982 43487254 36
6.451,022.87 §,800.508.22
40,090,149.78 43.349,089.02 WREHT Total Het Assata 85,824,257 66 50,881,941.48
92,597,393.54 101,430,401.06 0858 TOTAL LEABILITIES & NET ASSETS 92.507.393.54 101,430,401.08



WENZHOU-KEAN
UNIVERSITY

VTR A NF (BEIEIT) 12A31H
Statement of Activilies of Daily Operation for the Period ended 31st Dec 2017

T T T ey
Manefary ne: RMB YA, J

S8 Rems Fi#Note FY2016 Fyaeir

Y AEE Revanue 83

TR A Annual appropration 125,600,497 .70 188,733.328.40

{4 A Other incoma 2.521,554.63 925,210.02
@4 it Total Revenue 128.122,052.33 187, .42
B H Expenses 8.4

FLIT Wk % i Expenses on educalional aclivilies 80,952,778 29 130,123,404.31

P E i Expenses on research 150,302.92 339,439.34

1r #03% FL K 14 Expenses on adminisiration 32.748,491.02 38.518,879.06

Vi ¥3{Xi@ £ 7 Expenses an maintenance and logistical suppart 15,259.207.33 17.071.069.15
FH & Total Expenses 128,119,779.56 186.059.791.86
LY N EHPE Net Income of the Year -997,727 23 1,598.744 56
1B, L4 Plus, Balance of Surplus of previous year 46.724,947.11 45,727,219 88

K& #i% Ending Balance of Surplus 45,727,219.88 47,325,964 44
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B A A% Wenzhou-Kean University B4 48 M Notes to Financial Statements

EMEERXE
Wenzhou-Kean University
W &3RFTME 2017 £ 12 B 31 B

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

1. RAREAELR

Profile of the Institution
B RAE AT R AL R dRM KRN B EE R
DRI AV N B F RS RE I, T 2014 4 317 &1 dlarn

EIAEIERRSL, ERM TR ST EREMEL, BULHK “BMNER
KE”, WG (Elp sk ATF-B) FHEA 133030000510 7, hEREAELE,
T84 1,000 550, BCEMAEMTEESRX K 88 5. 2K ¥RER
Gl BT A KT RIRE MRS, HFRATLRUE, BREFRRNES, £
AN, SEERIFIBEE I E R LAA

Wenzhou-Kean University, hereinafier referred to as ‘the Institution’, is a higher education
institution of legal personality cooperatively run by Wenzhou University and Kean University
USA, officially established upon the approval of Ministry of Education of the People’s Republic
of China on March 31%, 2014. The institution registered as “Wenzhou-Kean University” with
Wenzhou Municipal Registration and Administration of Public Institutions, acquired Public
Institutien Legal Person Certificate No.133030000510, with the registered domicile of No. 88
Daxue Rd., Ouhai Sub-district, Wenzhou, The institution’s legal representative is WANG Beijiao,
and its startup capital was RMB 10,000,000 Yuan. The goal of Wenzhou-Kean University is to
establish a world-class comprehensive university, to cultivate innovative, creative, and
entrepreneurial internationalized working personnel with a global view as well as an awareness of

international rules and conventions.

2. BESTHENRER

Statement of Compliance with the Accounting Standards

A BRI S IR RAT & P e A RICE W BERAE0E #2012 48 12 A

12



#4891 32,5, 2 Wenzhou-Kean University M Notes to Financlal Statements

19 HECEMAR (RERRMEHIED (M (2012) 488 5) M2013 £ 12 A
30 B B0 (BMEERSUHED (Me[201330 50 REMETLITHUME
R, AL, BEHURRT FEMMHSRANFLERETRER.

These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Financial Regulations for
Higher Education Institutions {Cai Jiao [2012] No. 488) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the Ministry of Education of People’s Republic of China on December 19® 2012, and
Accounting Principles for Higher Education Institutions {Cai Kuai [2013] No. 30) issued by the
Ministry of Finance of People’s Republic of China on December 30 2013, and other relevant
rules issued. The financial statements give a true and complete view of the institution’s financial

position and of its financial perfonmance and other relevant information.

3. WS iRRAGEHIER

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

FAMMERRUFELEREVEM, RIB\EHFEENRSNER, K8
FHEANREFEWEEMEE N 20124 12 A 19 BRETMAN (SEERME
HIEED (WA# (2012) 488 5) 702013 £ 12 A 30 AMIARH (BERREITHE)

(M£[2013)30 %) RHMEREUHEMMER, HETUTHAREELTER.
it T w .

The financial statements of the institution are prepared on cash basis with the assumption of
ongoing concem, in compliance with Financial Regulations for Higher Education Institutions (Cai
Jiao [2012] No. 488) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry of Education of
People’s Republic of China on December 19" 2012, and Accounting Principles for Higher
Education Institutions ( Cai Kuai [2013] No. 30) issued by the Ministry of Finance of People’s
Republic of China on December 30" 2013, and other relevant rules. The financial information
presented in the accounting statement is prepared according to the following significant

accounting policy and accounting estimate,

4. BEESHEHE. LMt

Important Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates



AR, k4 Wenzhou-Kean University A48 Fe B E Notes to Financial Statements

4.1 £i4EE Accounting Year
ERULHEEEAL 1A 1 BRE 12 A31 Hik.

The institution’s accounting year starts on January 1 and ends on December 31.

4.2 IEHELLT Currency of Account
FREUUARTARKEAT.

The currency of account is RMB,

4.3 i T 2 ot F1 & 3t i B /B £ Accounting Basis and Measurement
Attributes

B L E— R AT SSRGS 2Rl — A I A e Rt
BRI,

The institution adopts the cash basis of accounting and historical cost principle.

4.4 PITERM Receivables

RO IERM R IR HABRBR. TR %,

A EMRIRIETRAIFAEDY: OMFES AB=BITT, CAERBH B0
e, MATRUERNNERT: ORFANEZEAERARENBIEY, RE
EX, URWF (BFERKRERS) HLRERENMEKK: OfFARMFR
BITEB NS, EERER, HELTEFEONEKR: OE=FE8UL. &
B IR 45 2R BA B S TR E R B O LT 3K

“Receivables” include Accounts Receivable, Other Receivables, and Advances.

The bad account is recognized when Dthe debtor is bankrupt or dead and the receivable is
not recoverable with the bankrupt property or inheritance; @the receivable is not recoverable
with the property (include insurance indemnity and so on) due to the major natural disasters or
accidents; Qthe court's adjudication indicates that the receivable cannot be recovered after the
debtor fails to fulfill the repayment obligations; @ the receivables are overdue for three years or

above, and there is concrete evidence indicating the receivable cannot be recovered.

4.5 KHEHE Long-term Investment

14
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KPR RERERERBAFERBREDT 1 £ (FE 1 £) HRBAMERE
RERR . cHIRRENGY, NUARBHELERRENRERE. FEHE,
AR SRR B S IR AL 2 .

“Long-term investment” refers to the equity or debt investment that is intended to be held for
over one year {excluding 1 year). At the time of acquisition of long-term investment, the actual
cost for the acquisition should be recorded as the cost of the investment. During the holding period,

earnings should be confirmed according to the amount actually recejved.

4.6 [ESEBET™ Fixed Assets

4.6.1 [& 52 B = BT IA A4 Recognition of fixed assets

FEMAEERRBARE RN 1,000 T L. THEBEEM 1,50 FTLL
L, ERHREBE—F, FEERAIEPELRFETURNENER. Rt
ENEPEERERFEAREREE. BER=HNEHHZERAAK.

“Fixed assets” refer to assets (the general equipment with a unit price of RMB 1,000Yuan or
above, or the special equipment with a unit price of RMB 1,500 Yuan or above) with a life
expectancy exceeding 1 year, which basically remain in their original physical form throughout
their life expectancy. The book collection in the library are recognized and managed as a fixed
asset. The cosis of the fixed assets are recognized at the actual value when acquired,

(2)E R FEF= 8528 N T EERATIR ¥ Classification of fixed assets, valuation

methods and depreciation method

& % = 3 IH R AF R PIREHRITA. TREREFWAREERE. X
WIS B, fR. SEME, TR, SREZE=1ERHHA.
Tt R EREMERIAENT:

Depreciation of fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method with zero scrap

value. Historical relics and exhibits, books, archives, animals and plants, etc., are not depreciated.

Life expectancy of fixed assets, rate of estimated residual vaiue and annual depreciation rates are

as follows:
H SR
TS i . T E R % e estimated EfriAR
rate of estimated
fixed asset classes . useful lives annual depreciation rates
residual value
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M4 Notes to Financial Statements

Wit REE .
B B 7= 2R . FH{E A estimated EHFAR
rate of estimated
fixed asset classes . useful lives annual depreciation rates
residual value
BRRHUYY Premises & _ 50 4 2 00%
buildings 50years )
tREE
ol - ot $.33%-16.67%
Special equipment 6-12ycars
BRRE 6-15 8 .
General equipment - 6-15years ettt
R, HA, &R 10E
3 . . —_ 10.00%
Fumiture, appliances, equipment 10years
AT others — Ll 8.33%-16.67%
6-12ycars

4.7 FEHHEF Intangible Assets
4,7.1 LB = H)8A1A Recognition of intangible assets
TR E=RIEARE LS REAERAZEREERRINOES, BEEHN

. B EER. EMEAR. EEFHARURIAMM TR TR
BeY, HEFRARENIE,

“Intangible assets” refers to the long-term non-monetary assets that derive their value from
the rights and privileges granted to their owner but lack physical substance, including patents,
trademarks, copyrights, land use rights, non-patented technology and other property rights. The

costs of the intangible assets are recognized at the actual value when acquired.
4.7.2 TR BEFHI9E4H Amortization of intangible assets
X TR PR A E IR TR 10 EHT A .

Intangible assets are amortized over 10 years using the straight line method.

48 WA Revenues

WAREFBMFREE. AR AMESRERBHIEREEERE S, A1
FEERREAN (RPOBEMBENEIRARELERA) « RN, HbkA.

FEERRUARBLYFHTEMRANE S, SEMBEMIRETZRA%
MEFEERK.

ZEWA, BERAMERE. MR EEHEESZS, FRERIGZHEZE
BB AT A .

HAbbN, BFEREERS. RSB BN, ERZVEETHRREA.
AT E R E HE SRS,
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“Revenues” refer to the non-refundable funds acquired through operation, such as
educational, research and other legal activities. The categories of revenues include annual
appropriation which is composed of government subsidies and revenues from undertakings,
subsidies from authorities at higher levels, revenue from affiliates, revenue from business other
than educational and research activities, and other incomes.

“Annual appropriation” refers to the operational funds appropriated by the municipal
government annually, including govemment grant and the appropriation of fund in the special

account that is sourced from tuition and fees revenue.

“Revenue from business-type activities” refers to the income generated from activities other

than education, research or relevant operation.
“Other revenue” refers to income that does not fall in the previous categories, including
investiment gain, interest income, donations, designated fund from institutions other than the

municipal finance bureau, and campus construction fund allocated by the govemment.

4.9 3TH Expenses

X HRIEFEMFREE. RERBEDRENRSFEBRE, OEH
FELXH, PHELH. THEEH. RRREXE. ERAXH. &%
X b .

HERLYH, FEUFRERBFERDNNBERDEDRENTE. B
B, BEEHTHRIEEER. RERFNAUREETAERNAEREAEE
RERNZH; BERBENIEEFEIRET L. BBESHEHBEITRESN
X

BIETEW T, FAMT R RREERENZS.

ITHEEX, FRUKRITRERRIARITHEEFENRENLH.

EERETE, FAMAKE. RO TRERSENRBEHEREEEN
X, BEERG—AEAK. B, K WBEEFTELAFILRE. MLEER.
S EMEFERR. FERLRAREEER. REMEIM. URERSE
EhiRMERR I AR UUE B RIRIR S R E R KA

KEXH, FBEMEHE. BPENEABDEN AT RIEBIZESE

17
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HEIRAERX .
HiZH, SEANEXE. HefTHL, BELERA. REZRXHE
ART LR HAEREN .

“Expenses” refer to the costs or loss incurred in carrying out educational, research and other
activities. The categories of the expenses include expenses on educational activities, expenses on
research activities, expenses on adminisiration, expenses on maintenance and logistical support,
expenses on retired employees, cost of business other that educational or research activities, and
other expenses.

“Expenses on educational activities” refers to the expenses incurred in camying out
educational and other facilitating activities, of which cost of educational activities is the cost
incurred in academic instruction and extracurricular events organized by student affairs, while cost
of facilitating activities is the cost incurred by IT service center and libraries in providing
supporting service to the academic activities.

“Expenses on research activities” refer 10 the expenses incurred in carrying out research
activities,

“Expenses on administration” refer to the expenses related to administrative activities.

“Expenses on maintenance and logistical support” refer to the costs incurred in providing
logistical support to academic, research, and administrative units, including utilities, greening,
expenses on operating and maintenance of university vehicles, facility maintenance, subsidies to
the cafeterias and other operational expenses of the maintenance and logistic service center.

“Costs on business-type activities” refer to the expenses incurred in order to generate income
from the business besides educational or research activities.

“Qther expenses” refer to expenses not falling in the categories as described above, including
interest cost, cash shortage loss, loss on disposal of assets, expenses on campus infrastructure and

construction, ete.

5. SR, SIHMETREREXIHEEEIERRE

Accounting Policy and Accounting Estimate change, Significant correction of errors in

the description of the major pre



B 2. k8 Wenzhou-Kean University M4 112K Notes to Financlal Statements

1. ZRMERIE 2017 % 12 A 31 BEREBENSHEE. 2+ ZEH,

There are no Accounting Policy and Accounting Estimate change until 31 December, 2017

2. FEAFIE 20174 12 A 31 BERIHREREEFIE.

There are no significant correction of errors in the previous financial years as of 31 December,

2017
6. B{IW Taxes
6.1 FEMMREBE Major categories of taxes and tax rates applicable
ﬁ# il {48 Tox base FAEE Tax rate
Categories of taxes
WES BREFEEEMRA LS R B 2
value-added tax Revenue other than tuition for the degree progrems
Bk RFREHEZREA SRR RN
. 3%
Business tax Revenue other than tuition for the degree programs
WiTEPFREHE
city maintenance and ST BB Business tax payable %
construction
= ﬂ'ﬁfﬂiﬂ B RHL BTG Business tax payable %
Educational surtax
oo f A 5!"Fﬁ1Jl] BN SE IR BT Business tax payable 2%
local educational surtax
2
N L , i ,
oo REgEBLFT18 Taxable income T-level progressive
individual Income Tax
rate system
- BRAEWANEE M e
Rental revenue of a property or the original value of a
Premises tax 1.2%or12%
property

6.2 BB FEH#LIX Preferential tax policy

AEEE. EFRBELR<<RTHERTEREEATMEET XBERBEFEN
EE>>IEL (2016) 82 S E 201646 1 B 1 HE 2018 £ 12 A 31 ARIEMKREE
ABMEHEEXNBETH. W, H20165E1 51 HE201656473300: 4
EENWB: B2016 55 A 1 Bile, EEBCRRERE RARER.

Notice on the Tax Policies of Operating College Dormitories and Canteens (Cai Shui

19
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[2013]N0.83) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of
Taxation,stipulating that college dormitories and canteens are Premises tax, and stamp tax from
January 1st 2016 to December 31st 2018; From January 1st, 2016 to April 30 st, 2016, exemption
from business tax; since May Ist, 2016, during the camp to increase the pilot period exemption

from value-added tax.

7. BHMERREIEREER
Notes to Major Items of the Consolidated Financial Statements
ELTERD BREAERZI EMRMAAART: “E4”7 82017 F 1
A1H, “FR"#2017F12 4310, “LFE” 2016 FHE, “&F” {52017
FE-
The currency unit used in the notes is RMB Yuan unless explicitly specified otherwise. The
beginning of current year refers to January 1%, 2017; the end of current year refers to December

31¢, 2017, last year refers to year 2016; and current year refers to year 2017.

7.1 H T & Monetary Assets (cash and deposit)

FERKHR FHIA
Amount at the end of current year Amount at the beginning of current year
ME 2 2
- prem | wwce | TEARTE | greg | smcg | TELRTE
Criginal Exchange RMB Original Exchange RMB
currency rate . currency rale \
equivalence equivalence
Re- AR
Cash-RMB 1,786.25 1.00 1,786.25 2,460.92 1.00 2,460.92
R
-UsD
-HAhE D
-Others
currency
&Nt
Subtotal - - 1,786.25 —— —_ 2,460.92
RITTFR-ART
Bank Deposit 76,702,899.24 1.00 76,702,899.24 95,667,515.99 1.00 95,667,515.99
-RMB
:%SJ; 5,105.75 6.5342 33,361.99 5,103.16 6.937 35,400.62
-FAb L
-Others
RATHEBUNT —_— — 76,736,261.23 —_— — | 9570251661
Subtotal
41 Total — e 76,738,047.48 — S 95,705,377.53
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7.2 TSR Advances
7.2.1 WESEEHIBR4E Analysis on age of other receivables
ERAM EMREG
Amount at the end of current year Amount at the beginning of current year
Rt AR .. KEAR oy
Ik & Bad debt
Account age Book Balance Bad debt Book Balance reserves
&1 AR reserves &M 4]
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
LA (R 1
£) 18,545.00 100.00% 1,240,658.18 §00.00%
=1 year
1E24
1-2 years
2EIF
2-3 years
IFLLE
>3 years
i Total 18,545.00 100.00% 1,240,658.18 100.00%

7.2.2 FRATMEER AT T 43 AL 1550 Description of top five debtors for Advances

o 5 el I i T
The Debtor -aion lo the Amount oun Percentage
institution age
EY B WA GRAARAT . AP
Shenzhen wise unite system technology Unrelated party 7,845.00 | Lessthan 1 42.30%
¢o.,lid year
EENEEXBBEIATEREFAR PG S 14ELLA
Information Research Center of Unrelated party 7,500.00 | Less than | 40.44%
Infernational Talent,SAFEA year
Beijing Hongsheng longhui Commercial Unrelated party 3,200.00 | Lessthan 1 17.26%
and Trading Co.,Ltd year
£t Total —_— 18,545.00 100.00%
73 HEFMEK Other receivables
73.1 WKESZEMIBHYN Analysis on age of other receivables
ERRW FEMER
Amount at the end of current year Amount at the beginning of current year
" HERE : TR BT
= Book Balance skt Book Balance &
Account age & Bad
&M 447 Bad debt £ 14:7] debt
Amount Percentage | reserves Amount Percentage
reserves
LU (B
) 968,759.57 45.86% 816,727.13 37.10%
=1 year
1£2% 210,070.79 9.94% 43,323.10 1.97%
1-2 years
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2E3F
37,070.00 1.75% 786,790.00 35.74%
2-3 years
3EUE
896,516.00 42.44% 554,566.00 25.19%
>3 years
&1 Total 2,112,416.36 100.00% 2,201,406.23 100.00%
7.3.2 XERWIKAT A& A 6HR
Description of top five debtors for other receivables
B Ea am | K &t
The Debtor elation to the Amount ceount Percentage
snstitution age
2R EINE BT 1 E 34
Development of new wall deposit Unrelated party 642,048.84 1-3 years 3039%
FSRTRER (35 ‘
L sz | LFA | sy
Employee arrears (US) Unrelated party =1 year
BRMHTE RN aR T 4
Wenzhou, Zhejiang Province, State Power Unilﬁfl‘di 176,000.00 :_? iaﬁ 8.33%
Supply Company party ¥
BRI RE (9H) FRBH
13390703 | L FP 6.34%
Employee arrears (Chinese side) Unrelated party =1 year
kKRS |53 2EIE 0
Bulk cement deposit Unrelated party ey 1-2 years Al
& Total — 1,359913.19 { —— 64.38%
7.3.3 AR EHEEREZEN AT EERER: .
Actual write-off of receivables in current reporting period: None.
7.3.4 LEME ST RTER: .
Balances of Other Receivables in foreign currencies: None.
7.4 CHIHPB Long-term Investment
EXRAM FEYRT
WE ltem Amount at the end of Amount at the beginning of
current year current year
-ﬁ'%ﬂﬂﬁ.ﬁ N 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
Investment in subsidiaries
Heb: BMERRSARLS
Of which: Wenzhou Kean Service Co,, Ltd 2,000,000.00 s —

L RAFMBRAEBREFFRALANRAEREENTHE A, (RTH
BRVEMERBRFHRATOMED) (BT (2013) 499 5) AEEMERX
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LU T &M % 200 ARCESREH M 2012 FRAHFHHERTF)
WL, RAEEH] 100%.

The investment in Wenzhou Kean Service Co., Lid was approved by Wenzhou Finance
Bureau, as confinned in the official document Approval of the establishment of Wenzhou Kean
Service Co., Ltd (WEN CAIZI (2013) No0.499) , in which the Finance Bureau approved that
Wenzhou-Kean University invests a capital of 2 million Yuan in the subsidiary for full equity, and

the capital was from the Initial Fund which is appropriated by the Finance Bureau in 2012,

7.5 BEEHEP Fixed Assets

EWa
Amount at the
< LA beginning of current
year

AERIN TERL ERAM
Increase in Decrease in Amount at the end
current year current year of current year

— REEHA:

Total book value 32,527,358.84 11,405,938.19 43,933,297.03

Hb: ERERMEYD
Of which: Premises & 2,837,116.42 2,837,11642
buildings

EHY%E

el 1,350,868.30 2,581,314.94 3,932,183.24
Special equipment

BRREE

. 20,660,812.26 4.880,617.54 25,541,420.80
General equipment

CHTEER R
Historical relics and 61,800.00 61,800.00
exhibits

B4, #E

Books& archives 6,644,715.38 422,280.29 7,067,095.67

FH. AR, AR
BhiEH

Furniture, app[iancesl 3,809,162.90 684,509.00 4,493 671.90
equipment, animals
and plants

HAth Others

—. RiFAE:
Total accumulated 6,474,522.66 4,055,588.62 98,287.05 10,431,824.23
depreciation

i BEEHNY
Of which: Premises & 321,530.36 321,530.36
buildings

TRY%

. . 430,944.98 348,024.25 1,220.89 777,748.34
Special equipment

BRARE

. 5,333,755.29 2,966,412.60 97,066.16 8,203,105.73
General equipment

X AREERN &
Historical relics and
exhibits

B4, BR

Books& archives

FHE. BA. RRR
shints 709,818.39 419,621.41 1,129,439.30
Fumiture, appliances,
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HAb Others

=, EEREFEESES

it
Total Net Value

26,052,836.18

33,501,472.80

H: BREWHD
Of which: Premises &
buildings

2,515,586.06

TRARE
Special equipment

919,923.32

3,154,434.90

HRRE

General equipment

15,327,052.97

17,338,324.07

XUERF &

Historical relics and
exhibits

61,800.00

61,800.00

BH. B5R

Booksé& archives

6,644,715,38

7,067,095.67

FA. BR. BRZ

shitiy

Fumiture, appliances,
equipment, animals
and plants

3,099,344.51

3,364,232.10

HAth Others

7.6 FERTTE Construction in Progress

TiH ltem Amount at the beginning

FEMREG

of current year

AEEM 0
Increase in current
year

FEWD
Decrease in current|
year

FERRAE
Amount at the end of
current year

BEERERE
Campus infrastructure and

construction

901,446,684.91

196,649,794.91

1,098,624,055.32

BrE MR T2 TTE
Advances for campus
construction projects

527,575.50

527,575.50

QA HAMMEFE
Office Automation software

development

978,500.00

51,500.00

1,030,000.00

BHEEHTRRY ext
book acquisition and
distribution systemText
book acquisilion and

disteibution system

100,000.00

1040,000.00

FxR85

Tennis court

1,793,223.30

188,681.00

1,981,904.30

FER3ANEBE T
Illumination  project on

tennis court

855.212.12

855,212.12

Mediasite FRIB R 4L

690,451.31

71,582.41

762,033.72
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FHIRE FEHm EERDP FHRR
BB Iem Amount at the beginning |Increase in curreni|Decrease in current| Amount at the end of
of current year year year current year

MediasiteRecording System
FEELTREE
Network optimization 1,389,000.00 1,389,000.00
program equipment
— W RT3
The first campus land 980,000.00 980,000.00
acquisition fee
Peoplesoft S (L H

P 153,600.00 153,600.00
Peoplesoft Digital Campus

907,934,247.14

it Toul 907,934,247.14| 197,941,558.32 6,018,150.14 1,099,857,655.32

LRFR BREEREE” RERNTRRNRESRSHE (STEMHE
BRI A RUCEMAF IR SR SR (BREE (2011) 80 ),5H T2
BRHAL 151728 258, MEMTEBMHRTRBERRM. “BR TR
FREER AT TR,

The Item “Campus infrastructure and construction” is approved by Wenzhou Development

and Reform Committee per its official document Approval of The Feasibility Report on

Wenzhou-Kean University Project ( Wen Fagaishen {2011) No.80) . The total investment of the

project, estimated at 1,517,280,000 Yuan, is to be financed by the municipal government, and the

fund will be appropriated according to the progress of the project. The Item “Advances for

projects” refers to the advances for the campus infrastructure and construction projects.

7.7 EFEHEF* Intangible Assets

/A
FORE wemm | SIS exen
WA Item Amount at the beginning Increase in corrent Amount at the end
of current year current year - of current year

= P

- REREST 7,814,794.07 | 1,346,877.82 9,161,671.89
Total book value
Hed: R

Of which: Software 7,791,994.07 1,346,877.82 9,138,871.89

iR

Trademark right 22,800.00 22,800.00
=, Rig#Ea:

Total accumulated 1,363,770.20 897,392.47 2,261,162.67

amortization
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O;ft;iiﬁscﬂwm 136092032 | 895,112.59 2,256,032.91
rfifﬁk right 2oL 2,279.88 5,129.76

= ﬁﬁfﬁf \iﬂ; 6451,023.87 —_ — 6,900,500.22
qu:':»h%}ff Software 6,431,073.75 — — 6,882,838.98
el right 19,950.12 — — 17,670.24

7.8 R{FHEER Accounts Payable

7.8.1 TKEEZE 99940 Analysis on account age of accounts payable

e ERRE ENRA
Amount at the end of current year Amount at the beginning of current year
Account age £ Amount L 8% Percentage £% Amount i) Percentage
VEEA (F18)
ST;PE Gl 42,553,903.96 66.47% 30,051,039.74 99.56%
1ZE24
21,470,170.74 33.53% 131,550.00 0.44%
-2 years
2EIE
2-3 years
JELE
>3 years
&1t Total 64,024,074.70 100.00% 30,182,589.74 100.00%
7.82 WitEE | FHHFERATHK:
Accounts payable of important with an age over | year: Nene
WKW RETRLEFNERE
XA LH e
Amountattheend | Thereasons for not being paid
Creditors ,
of current year or carvied forward
BHIERZEBRAF IBREIEN
Zhejiang Zhengkang 3,333,237.53 Construction projects
Telecammunication Construction Co. Ltd unfinished
=3
T &AM ARTRIBEAH IERRTHY
Zhejiang Jingda 9,488,773.00 Construction projects
Construction Company Limited unfinished
R R HEAFRAE IEkEH
Kunpeng 3,479,508.48 Construction projects
Construction Group Co., Ltd. unfinished
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EHRFERRETRTRASD TEREH
Whenzhou Acle 1,100,190.00 Construction projects
Intelligent System project limited company unfinished
. . ki
WTHR R R AR TRkaH
Zhejiang Xingbang 2,631,350.73 Construction projects
Construction Stock Corporation (Ll
it 20,033,059.74
7.83 RATIREKPSTIRBIER: K.
Balances of Accounts Payable in foreign currencies: None.
7.9 RIZEBLE Taxes Payable
5 EVRM AEERR | FELR R
Amount at the beginning | Payable for the | Psid in curent | Amount at the end
Jtem of current year current year year of current year
il
Business tax
Wi aE R
city maintenance and
construction tax
B
house property tax
s -
" ABRE Individual 2,553,39357 | 7,173,030.64 | 11,331,605.11 6,711,968.04
Income Tax
BUH BN
Educational surlax
HAh Others 14,568.04 10,761.88 289,482.28 293,288.44
B Total 2,567,961.61 7,183,792.52 | 11,621,087.39 7,005,256.48

710 HER/IEK Other Payables

7.10.1 WRESEEMIBAME Analysis on account age of other payables

FEREY EPRE
ks Amount at the end of current year Amount at the beginning of current year
t 4]
Account age 43 Amount £ Amount H:ff) Percentage

Percentage

1R (F1F)

a,
=1 year 3,785,770.65 45.27%

11,949,671.76 100.00%

TE25
1-2 years

4,576,784.05 36.38%

2EIE
2.3 years
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kE:3) 0
>3 years
&3 Total 8,362,554.70 100.00% 11,949,671.76 100.00%
7.102 ke | FREEHTR{TK:
Other Payables of important with an age over 1 year: None.
ARETRAHMEER
BB HAFR R FETREHERE
. Amount at the end of The reasons for not being paid
Creditors
current year or carried forward
BHLEFRR BT RA T BHRES. ITRRETL
Zhejiang Xingbang 2,555,701.57 | Performance bond for unfished
Construction Stock Corporation construction project
; ; BREES. RRYkE
THFITIAEARKFRAS] . .
. . . . 230,180.00 | Quality guarantee deposit for
Ningbo AisikaiHotel appliance Limited company . .
unexpired guarantce period
RRRTEE. ARMKSE
HIRLFAFRAT . .
166,605.00 | Quality guarantee deposit for
Zhejiang Aotu Fumniture Co., Ltd
unexpired guaraniee period
BHMESE. TRERL
i . gAF
ot s e sy 162,700.00 | Perfonmance bond for unfished
Whenzhou Zhenan Construction Supervision Co. . .
construction project
BAEBRERMNEARLR 138.900.00 RE
Whenzhou Haolian Info Technology Co., Lid. T Settlement not completed
&iF 3,254,109.57

7103 REMARPHAHRARR: X.

Balances of Other Payables in foreign currencies: None.

7.11 EvEL Undertaking funds

mE EEeW LESH
Itemn Amount of current year Amount of last year
—fREe
General funds 3,838,710.08 3,653,500.06
T B I 3 R () 45 5%
Project management fee and indirect fee
&1} Total 3,838,710.08 3,653,500.06

712 FEHiZIHE =4 Non-Current Assets Funds

28



M E A4 Wenzhou-Kean University

R4-48. % 3k Notes to Financlal Statements

Big FEEE LERW
Item Amount of cusrent year Amount of last year
it . 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
non-current assets funds—long-term investment
FRDEES—BERR 33,508,360.80 26,059,724.18
non-current assets funds—fixed assets
FrRspRFES—HMTE 1,035,445,777.83 874,529,973.91
non-current assets funds—construction in progress
S5y Bi?"ﬁﬁ—-%ﬂ?fé‘?‘ - 6,900,509.22 6,451,023.87
non-current assets funds—intangible assets
P A — R it
non-current assets funds—others
&3 Total 1,077,854,647.85 909,033,833.96
7.13 B&LH¥ Funds Carried Forward
me EESLE LEST
Item Amount of current year Amount of last year
(AEERKP) R 43,487,254.36 42,073.719.82

Carry-forward of annual appropriation

ERFMBLEH
Carry-forward of campus construction fund

16,291,329.17

41,853,203.82

41t Total 59,778,583.53 83,926,923.64
7.14 WL\ Revenues
7.14.1 WA BA4AZR Details of Revenues
FIELM LHEEH
WA ltem Amount of current year Amount of last year
EFIREA
Amnual appropriation 186,733,326.40 125,600,497.70
ey 140,925,210.02 67,521,554.63
Other revenue
A1l Total 327,658,536.42 193,122,052.33

7.14.2 FEBEBBANHHER

Details of Annual appropriation

HE ltem FEEE LE&Hm
Amount of current year Amount of last year
gt iﬁ:ﬁfﬁﬁ bsidics 73,658,226.40 60,241,797.70
Tkl 113,075,100.00 65,358,700.00

Revenue from undertakings

£2EWA Revenue from business other than
education and research activities
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&t Total 186,733,326.40 125,600,497.70
7.14.3 HARBA IR Details of Other Revenue
BB ltem FEST LEER
Amount of current year Amount of last year
HBHEA 184,708.72 2,062,553.80
Interest revenue
Egﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ'&l&)\ - 120,000,000.00 65,000,000.00
Campus construction fund appropriation
3 [ 4 R BUR 2K
Funds from institutions other than 545,000.00 173,000.00
municipal finance bureau
FHgF i A
Revenue from sciemtific undertakings 193,000.00 281,000.00
MR
e 20,000,000.00 5,000.00
HAtde A
Other revenue 501.30 0.83
A1 Totat 140,925,210.02 67,521,554.63
7.15 3TH Expenses
7.15.1 X HHEAMAR Details of Expenses
me EEER LEE&H
Item Amount of current year Amount of last year
mEsLxE 130,129,404.31 80,952,778.29
Expenses on educational activities
ML . s 339,439.34 159,302.92
Expenses on research activities
R EER A 38,519,879.06 32,748,491.02
Expenses on administration
IR L 17,071,069.15 15,259,207.33
Expenses on maintenance and logistical support
BB ORI H
Expenses on retired employees
BEIH
Cost of business other that educational or research activities
Hde s 165,561,874.65 92,692,837.24
Other expenses

£t Total

351,621,666.51

221,812,616.80

7152 I HAEHDZE Classification by categories of expenses

HH

hem

EESH

Amount of current year
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PWHELIN
Expenses on
educational
activities

HutsEd ¥
i)
Expenses on
research
activities

FRERR
t
Expenses on
administration

= aple ]
Expenses on

maintenance

and logistical

support

Rl

Other expenses

&+ Total

THEBRZY
Salary and Benefits

98,899,958.06

28,788,571.19

127,688,529.25

Hep. ZBART

BRI

Of which: Salary
and Benefits for
Kean Assigned
Personnel

98,899,958.06

98,899,958.06

PI7A R ERHARR

b

Salary and Benefits

for Chinese
Personnel

28,788,571.19

28,788,571.19

[FELE LSS 4

Expenditures on Goods

and Services

22,510,873.06

201,564.34

8,371,486.27

15,008,412.15

46,092,335.82

A~ AT B2 R4hBh

Subsidy and Aids to
Individuals

4,078,193.61

31,151.00

140,234.60

4,249,579.21

A Tt A0 3%
Capital Expenditure

4,640,379,58

106,724.00

1,219,587.00

2,062,657.00

8,029,347.58

PRI

Campus infrastructure

and construction

165,561,874.65

&t Total

130,129,404,31

339,439.34

38,519,879.06

17,071,069.15

165,561,874.65

165,561,874.65

351,621,666.51

B

Item

LFEW

Amount of last year

HEPFL¥Y
Expenses on
educational
activities

Hotupde e
il
Expenses on
research
activities

TEHEHEE
i
Expenses on
administration

RE R
Expenses on
maintenance
and logistical

support

HAh oy
Other
expenses

&1t Total

THERZN
Salary and Benefits

53,514,310.3%

23,329,126.65

76,843,437.04

R BFARE

BiRAR

Of which: Salary
and Benefits for
Kean Assigned
Personnel

53,514,310.3%

53,514,310.39

DI\ REABARR

Xl

Salary and Benefits

for Chinese
Personnel

23,329,126.65

23,329,126.65

EREERVEE A

Expenditures on Goods

and Services

18,579,247.95

109,532.92

7,534,721.89

13,225,559.48

39,449,062.24
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A AFOFEER I BY
Subsidy and Aids to
Individuals

2,007,653.00

30,770.00

132,890.48

2,171,313.48

Kib s
Capital Expenditure

6,851,566.95

15,000.00

1,751,752.00

2,033,647.85

10,655,966.30

KRR
Campus infrastructure
and construction

92,692,837.24

92,692,837.24

4 it Total

80,952,778.29

159,302.92

32,748,491.02

15,259,207.33

92,692,837.24

221,812,616.80

FHARHBEANZHEETE. 8. RAURKBHLSRRRNERAR
EB REARFHXHOFEENERTERRENEFREAANITE. BE
RERH REAETRESRH . BREREEMTHES A RELEIF RS

M

“Balary and benefits for Chinese personnel” includes salary, benefits, social insurance and

housing provident fund that is bome by employers. “Salary and benefits for Kean assigned

personnel” includes the reimbursement to Kean for salary, social insurance and health insurance

of the assigned employees, as well as other benefits and welfare expenditures incurred in

Wenzhou.

8.

FREBEBITHERREENEER

Notes to Major Items of the Financial Statements for University's Daily

Operation

8.1 B H¥& Monetary Assets (cash and deposit)

EXRAR ENRE
Amount at the end of current year Amount at the beginning of current year
R ;
ltem Rrad | TOHCE | oo RiEeg | CReR | ICR | L s
o Exchange . Original Exchange R
Qriginal currency RMB equivalence RMB equivalence
rate currency rate
—_— YT - | ! S
Cash-RMB 862.71 1.00 - 862.1 ; ,537.38 1.00 1,537.38
-
-UsD o ! N
HAEkT
-Others
R il ) i
Subtotal — | 862.71 —_— _ 1,537.38
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RITFR-ARD
Bank Deposit
-RMB

57,197,995.21 1.00

37,197,995.21

50,386,318.66

1.00

50,386,318.66

-UsD

5,105.75 6.5342

33,361.9¢

5,103.16

6.937

35,400.62

-Hibk @
-Others

RITHER M
Subtotal

57,23],357.20

50,421,719.28

&% Total

57,232,219.91

50,423,236.66

LERMRSEFALRAEETERS LHEH, FEEERKSARTES.

The amounts as shown in above form is the monetary assets of daily operation,
excluding the monetary assets of the campus construction fund.

8.2 HERUEK Other Receivables
8.2.1 Mk#ALEHIRALE Analysis on age of other receivables

FERHE YR
Amount at the end of current year Ainount at the beginning of current year
1T W A FR W R ki
Account age Book Balance % Book Balance B§d
a
&1 befp| | Baddebt &% H 5 debt
Amount Percentage | Teserves Amount Percentage | reserves
LA (B
£) 584,137.18 70.33% 726,258.92 86.12%
=] year
1224 131,339.95 15.81% 39,070.00 4.63%
1-2 years
2EIE
37,070.00 4.46% 65,000.00 7.1M%
2-3 years
IFEUE
78,000.00 9.39% 13,000.00 1.54%
>3 years
& Total 830,547.13 | 100.00% 84332892 |  100.00%
822 KERWIT AL RMUHER
Description of top five debtors for other receivables
B SEBRR &1 Fss &
The Debtor Relation to the Amount Account age Percentage
institution . °
BRI (37 5 *ﬁfﬁ 341,231.32 éfm 41.09%
Employee arrears (US) nrelated party =1 year
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Fund from institution other than the

HAL &R THRBARR £ Rt oy
The Debter Re.lan?n to = Amount Account age Percentage
institution
BRI RER (R 2y -

X X iz 133,907.03 ;ﬁiﬁ 16.12%
Employee amears {Chinese side) Unrelated party =1 year
®ANEEEER e RIBTT 1E3%& .
Wenzhou City Housing Authority Unrelated party 44,000.00 1-3 years e
RERBHY FERBEH 1E3%

Juying homes Property Unrelated party LR 1-3 years —
B RAEE Ry [ 3 "
Wenzhou Finance Bureau related party el <1 year 3.30%
23 Total — b EES — 73.69%
8.3 YA Revenues
8.3.1 AP Details of Revenues
EEET LEET
B lem Amount of current year Amount of last year
FRBBEN L 186,733,326.40 125,600,497.70
Annual appropriation
KipdA 925,210.02 2,521,554.63
Other revenue
4l Total 187,658,536.42 128,122,052.33
8.3.2 EFRIICNIIYFE Details of Annual appropriation
FELE LEE®T
ME  lrem Amount of current year Amount of last year
gﬁ?}ﬁb&k - 73,658,226.40 60,241,791.70
overnment subsidies
A
Revenue from undertakings 113,075,100.00 65,358,700.00
S8 A Revenue from business other than
education and research activities
&3 Total 186,733,326.40 125,600,497.70
8.3.3 HAhi AH4IFR Details of Other Revenue
58 ltem FEL LEEW
Amount of current year Amount of last year
ABLEN 184,708.72 2,062,553.80
Interest revenue
e BB 173,000.00

34



B ® k% Wenzhou-Kean University

E‘_&ﬁﬁﬂtﬁ Notes o Financial Statements

municipal finance bureau
HTELEA '
Revenue from scientific undertakings 345,000.00 C L
#ﬁ;@[ﬁ)\ 195,000.00 5,000.00
donations
HAEN 501.30 0.83
Other revenue
&3 Total 925,210.02 2,521,554.63
8.4 X IH Expenses
841 XHBAME Details of Expenses
LiH FESW LEEW
Item Amount of current year Amount of last year
s 130,129,404.31 80,952,778.29
Expenses on educational activitics
BRI » 339,439.34 159,302.92
Expenses on research activities
s 38,519,879.06 32,748,491.02
Expenses on administration
B RME
Expenses on maintenance and logistical 17,071,069.15 15,259,207.33
support
HiBAE Y
Expenses on retired employecs
ZEX
Cost of business other that educational or
research activities
HAb3d)
Other expenses
& Total 186,059,791.86 129,119,779.56
8.4.2 13 HFR44 Classification by categories of expenses
EELM
Amount of current year
e puswxy | PISLE | gy | RBRRLE
H Expenses on HAthsTHh
Item Expenses on i . :
. Expenses on maintenance Other &1t Total
educational Expenses on L .
L. research A and logistical expenses
activities N administration
activities support
THARRI 98,899,958.06 28,788,571.19 127,688,529.25
Salary and Benefits "
Hep: REARR
BRI
Of which: Salary
and Benefits for Ll 98,899,958.06
Kean Assigned
Personnel
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aF AR EEER
il

Salary and Benefits
for Chinese
Personnel

28,788,571.19

28,788,571.19

i R AR 45 3Tl
Expenditures on Goods
and Services

22,510,873.06

201,564.34

8,371,486.27

15,008,412.15

46,092,335.82

A AT B FhBY
Subsidy and Aids to
Individuals

4,078,193.61

31,151.00

140,234.60

4,249,579.21

Ripg At

Capital Expenditure

4,640,379.58

106,724.00

1,219,587.00

2,062,651.00

8,029,347.58

RS
Campus infrastructure
and construction

& Total

130,129,404.31

339,439.34

38,519,879.06

17,071,069.15

186,059,791.86

HH

Itemn

FEEW

Amount of current year

BHEELI W
Expenses on
educational

activities

MEFL X
H
Expenses on
research
activities

THERE
]

Expenses on
administration

B8RMIH
Expenses on
maintenance
and logistical

support

Hihsr
Other
expenses

A1 Total

THENEY
Salary and Benefits

53,514,310.29

23,329,126.65

76,843,437.04

e BEARE
bbb

Of which: Salary
and Benefits for
Kean Assigned
Personnel

53,514,310.39

53,514,310.39

5 A REEER
b

Salary and Benefits
for Chinese
Personnel

23,329,126.65

23,329,126.65

T SR 3L
Expenditures on Goods
and Services

18,579,247.95

109,532.92

7,534,721.89

13,225,559.48

39,449,062.24

A FEE B
Subsidy and Aids to
Individuals

2,007,653.00

30,770.00

132,890.48

2,17,313.48

b BE A4 il

Capital Expenditure

6,851,566.95

19,000.00

1,751,752.00

2,033,647.85

10,655,966.80

REENRER

Campus infrastructure
and construction

4t Total

80,952,778.2%

159,302.92

32,748,491.02

15,259,207.33

129,119,779.56
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9. =R HEEIKH Events after the Balance Sheet Date
FRABIEFAREDLFEHBNE = ARRA TR,
There are no other events after the balance sheet date.
10. A HI Contingencies
ABLEIE 2017 % 12 A 31 BEREBRFES.

There are no contingencies that occurred until 31 December 2017,

11. BXAEEH Important Commitment
AU 2017 F 12 A 31 BEEREBERERT.

There is no important commitment that occurred until 31 December 2017.

12. FAEEBMPERE Other Important Issues
e BIE20017F 12 A3 BERHEBHGEEES.

There are no other important issues occurred up to 31 December 2017,

13. &R AL Approval of the Financial Statements
FUE MR EBHE A

The financial statements should be approved by the Board of Directors.
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March 30, 2012

Governor Chris Christie
Office of the Governor
PO Box 001

Trenton, NJ 08625
609-292-6000

Dear Governor Christie:

CONSULATE GENERAL OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
1463 HUAI HAI ZHONG LU

SHANGHAI 200031

I am writing to say that Kean University made New Jersey proud last week when we broke ground

for the new campus of Wenzhou-Kean

University in Zhejiang province. Zhejiang is part of our

consular district and I was privileged lo join Board Chair Ada Morell and President Dawood Farahi
in the ceremonics, which, even by Chinese standards, were quite spectacular!

This kind of cooperation is just the s

of thing we are promoting here in East China. U.S,

cducation is in high demand among Chinese students and will promote greater understanding and
cooperation between the United States and China, benefiting both countries. Projects like this will
bring our education system and value$ within reach of many more Chinese students than could ever
afford to travel to the United States, apd students from the United States will gain valuable exposure
to a country that will become more prominent, and important to our economy, as the years go by.

Projects like these do not come aboutleasily, Kean joins the ranks of Duke University and New York
University who are developing campyses of comparable magnitude here, 1 know that President
Farahi and his team have been buildirjg relationships in Wenzhou for years, and the presence at the
ceremony of both provinciat and natignal leaders was clear evidence that the Chinese side is

committed to making this a success.

The project is off to a great start. 1a
who is on the ground in Wenzhou, an
toward its opening in 2013.

2S. Consul General
Shanghai, China

in touch with Philip Connelly, Kean’s VP for Operations,
we will provide whatever help we can as the campus moves






Attachment 8






Expense Reimbursement Agreement
between Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean University

THIS Expense Reimbursement Agreement is intended to supplement the Cooperation Agreement
on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University between Wenzhou University
(hereinafter referred to as *WU™) and Kean University (hereinatter referred to as,
“Reimbursement Agreement” and *Cooperation Agreement” respectively). This Reimbursement
Agreement is made and entered into effective as of the date written below by and between Kean
University, Union, New Jersey USA (hereinafter referred to as “KU™) and Wenzhou-Kean
University, Wenzhou, Zheijang Province, PRC (hereinafier referred to as “WKU”). KU and
WKU are each also referred to as a “*Party” and collectively referred to as the "Parties.”

WIHEREAS, the WU and KU entered into a Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and
Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University Between Wenzhou University and Kean University dated
May 8, 2006; and

WHEREAS, the WU and KU entered into a revised version of the Cooperation Agreement on the
Establishinent and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University Between Wenzhou University and
Kean University dated December 22, 2010; and

WHEREAS, on December 23, 2010, the WU and KU entered into a Supplementary Agreement fo
the Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University
Between Wenzhou University and Kean University; and

WHEREAS, the WU and KU have agreed to finther amend certain provisions of the Cooperation
Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University Between Wenzhou
University and Kean University to clarify issues concerning the financial reimbursement of
expenses by WU to KU for the operation of Wenzhou-Kean University: and

WHEREAS, on November 16, 2011, the Chinese Ministry of Education granted In Preparation
approval to WKLU, and on June 14, 2012, WKU acquired official legal status, and is hence forth
recognized as an independent legal entity under PRC law, and thus reimbursements agreed upon
by WU and KU in the Cooperation Agreement, and further clarified herein, may now be
transacted directly by WKU;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenamns and mutual promises herein contained,
KU and WKU agree as follows:

I.  Services to WKU by KU shall be presented each year in a spending budget for the following
year to facilitate WKU's arrangement of overall budget. The budget presented by KU shall
be approved by the Board of Directors of WKU.

2. KU is entitled to receive reimbursement from WKU, for all of the following direct expenses
incurred while providing services to WKU.

{a) Annual salaries and bencfits of all KU employees assigned to the operations of
WKU as specified in their employment agreements, which should also specity their
check-in date with WKL, and the starting date of their employment;



(b) Overhead costs for hours worked by KU employees providing services for the
benefit of WKU, an hourly rate for which shall be calculated by dividing the
employee's annual salary by 2,000;

(¢) Compensation and expenses for all independent professional service contractors
providing services for the benefit of WKU including but not limited to: audit, legal,
engineering, environmenta!, financial, tax, payroll; which cxpenses should be
reflected in the budget provided by KU to WKU, and KU shall obtain approval
from WKU in advance for any expenditures in excess of USDI10,000 but not
specifically identified in the budget, and any expenditures in excess of USD 50,000
but not specifically identified in the budget shali be recognized by the Board of
Directors of WKL afterwards.

{(d) Telephone, facsimile, postage and supplies;

(¢) Expenses for tangible technology purchased for WKU, including internet,
cellular/satellite telephone, computer hardware & software, tablets, and other
similar items. If the tangible assets as described above reaches the criterion of
fixed asset according to Chinese accounting regulations, they shall be recognized
and recorded in the fined assets account of WKU;

(f) Premiums for insurance, including but not limited to general liability insurance,
health, workers compensation, automobile, medical evacuation, and accident
insurances for employees assigned to WKU, and additional directors and officers
coverage required as a result of operations in WKU. KU may add to this list upon
its rcasonable determination of such need, and obtain written approval from the
appropriate representative(s) of WKU prior to payment of such costs, and WKU
shall approve reasonable requests

(8) Reimbursement for travel expenses, including airfare, immigration, lodging, meals
and ground transportation, shall be documented as requested by the appropriate KU
and WKU officials;

(h) Reimbursements for KU employees who make out-of-pocket cxpenditures for the
benefit of and with the approval of WKU;

(i) Any and all reasonable expenses related (o the preparation for and performance of
duties for WKU by KU, and whenever reasonably feasible, KU shall provide WKU
prior notice for any such expense that is not noted in the budget, and obtzin
approval from WKU.

Not withstanding KU’s right to all reimbursements agreed upon herein and in the
Cooperation Agreement, wherever reasonable, expenses thal may be contracted directly by
WKU and/or transacied within the PRC, shall so be contracted and/or transacted.

KU shall submit requests for reimbursement to WKU subject to the following procedures:



a) KU will submit its reimbursement for expenses on a monthly basis to WKU by
means of a written report approved by KU's Executive Vice President of
Operations that includes:

(i) a cover sheet summarizing the expenses incurred;

(i)  supporting work statement of the charges for salaries/benefits for
services provided by each KU employee for academic, instruction,
human resources, information technology, payroll, legal, accounting,
budget, archilectural/engineering, immigration, student affairs and other
adimmistrative support services;

(iii)  supporting sheets indicating an itemized list of reimbursable expenses
for postage, telephone, internet, computer hardware & software,
cetlular/satetlite telephone, travel, etc.;

(iv)  supporting sheets, including invoices, itemizing all costs related to
compensation and expenses for all independent professional service
contractors providing services for the benefit of WKU;

{b) WKU will receive such monthly expense reports and submit to the Wenzhou
Finance and Tax Office for review and approval within 30 days of receipt.

(c¢) Upon approval of each monthly expense report, WKU will arrange for a timely
wire transfer for the approved amount to KU’s authorized financial institution
pursuant to wiring instructions provided to WKU by KU;

{d) Since the salaries and benefits of KU employees assigned to WKU are foreseeable,
upon execution of the contract, KU shall provide a list of employees, along with
fixed salaries and benefits expenses to WKU and within 30 days of receipt of said
list, WKU shall transmit advanced payment of these costs on a quarterly basis.

(e) After receiving the wire transfer in satisfaction of each monthly expense invoice,
KU shall provide WK U with an electronic or written communication
acknowledging such payment.

Any conflicts or disputes regarding the approval and payment of KU's monthly expense
report shall be resolved through friendly consultation between the Parties. In the event
the Parties cannot resolve a conflict or dispute, then either Parly may submit the dispute
in accordance with the Cooperation Agreement,

This Reimbursement Agreement is intended to clarify the expense and reimbursement rights
and obligations previously agreed upon in the Cooperative Agreement and shall apply to all
such rights and obligations incurred by the Parties on or atier November 16, 2011.

Any dispute arising from, our of the implementation of, or in connection with this Agreement
shall be addressed in accordance with Article 18 of the Cooperative Agreement unless
otherwise agreed upon in writing by both parties.



7. Anything not addressed by this Reimbursement Agreement shall be governed by the terms of
the Cooperation Agreement.

g This Reimbursement Agreement is written in English and Chinese languages, with both
language versions being of equal force and effect. This Agreement is made in two originals
of each language, one copy of each language version to be held by each party.

9. This Agreement enters into effect upon signature of both parties, with a term of validity of
three years.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representative as of the date set forth below.

Wenzhou-Kean University Kean University

il

Qian Qiang
Vice Chair of

niversity Counci Executive Vice Lr¢sident

This Agreement is signed on October 22, 2014 .
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Expense Reimbursement Agreement
between Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean University

THIS Expense Reimbursement Agreement is intended to supplement the Cooperation Agresment
on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University between Wenzhou University
(hereinafter referred to as “WU") and Kean University (hereinafter referred 1o as,
uReimbursement Agreement” and “Cooperation Agreement” respectively). This Reimbursement
Agreement is made and entered into effective as of the date written below by and between Kean
University, Union, New Jersey USA (hereinafter referred to as “KU™) and Wenzhou-Kean
University, Wenzhou, Zheijang Province, PRC (hereinafter referred to as “WKU”). KU and
WKU are each also referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, the WU and KU entered into a Cooperalion Agreement on the Establishment and
Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University Berween Wenzhou University and Kean University daied
May 8, 2006; and

WHEREAS, the WU and KU entered into a revised version of the Cooperation Agreement on the
Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University Between Wenzhou University and
Kean University dated December 22, 2010; and

WHEREAS, on December 23,2010, the WU and KU entered into a Supplementary Agreement (0
the Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University
Between Wenzhou University and Kean University, and

WHEREAS, the WU and KU have agreed to further amend certain provisions of the Cooperation
Agreement on the Esiablishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University Between Wenzhou
University and Kean University 1o clarify issues concerning the financial reimbursement of
expenses by WU to KU for the operation of Wenzhou-Kean University; and

WHEREAS, on November 10, 2011, the Chinese Ministry of Education granted In Preparation
approval to WKU, and on June 14,2012, WKU acquired official {egal status, and is hence forth
recognized as an independent legal entity under PRC law, and thus reimbursements agreed upon
by WU and KU in the Cooperation Agreement, and further clarified herein, may now be
transacted ditectly by WKU;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and mutual promises herein contained,
KU and WKU agree as follows:

1. Services to WKU by KU shall be presented each year in a spending budget for the following
year to facilitate WKU's arrangement of overall budget. The budget presented by KU shall
be approved by the Board of Directors of WKU.

2. KU is entitled to receive reimbursement from WKU, for all of the following direct expenses
incurred while providing services to WKU.

(a) Annual salaries and benefits of all KU employees assigned to the operations of
WKU as specified in their employment agreements, which should also specify their
check-in date with WKU, and the starting date of their employment;



(b) Overhead costs for hours worked by KU employees providing services for the
benefit of WKU, an hourly rate for which shall be calculated by dividing the
employee’s annual salary by 2,000,

(c) Compensation and expenses for all independent professional service contractors
providing services for the benefit of WKU including but not limited to: audit, legal,
engineering, environmental, financial, tax, payroll; which expenses should be
reflected in the budget provided by KU to WKU, and KU shall obtain approval
from WKU in advance for any expenditures in eXcess of USD10,000 but not
specifically identified in the budget, and any expenditures in excess of USD 50,000
but not specifically identified in the budget shall be recognized by the Board of
Directors of WKU afterwards.

(d) Telephone, facsimile, postage and supplies;

(¢) Expenses for tangible technology purchased for WKU, including internet,
cellular/satellite lelephone, computer hardware & software, tablets, and other
similar items. If the tangible assets as described above reaches the criterion of
fixed asset according to Chinese accounting regulations, they shall be recognized
and recorded in the fixed assets account of WKU;

(f) Premiums for insurance, including but not limited to general liabitity insurance,
healih, workers compensation, automobile, medical evacuation, and accident
insurances for employees assigned to WKU, and additional directors and officers
coverage required as a result of operations in WKU. KU may add to this list upon
its reasonable determination of such need, and obtain written approval from the
apprapriate representative(s) of WKU prior to payment of such costs, and WKU
shall approve reasonable requests

() Reimbursement for travel expenses, including airfare, immigration, lodging, meals
and ground transportation, shall be documented as requested by the appropriate KU
and WKU officials;

(h) Reimbursements for KU employees who make out-of-pocket expenditures for the
benefit of and with the approval of WKL,

(i) Aay and all reasonable expenses related to the preparation for and performance of
duties for WKU by KU, and whenever reasonably feasible, KU shall provide WKU

prior notice for any such expense that is nol noted in the budget, and obtain
approval from WKU.

3, Not withstanding KU's right to all reimbursements agreed upon herein and in the
Cooperation Agreement, wherever reasonable, expenses that may be contracted directly by
WEKU and/or transacied wliliie tiw PRC, ohall gg he ~antracted andfor transacted.

4. KU shall submii requests for reimbursement to WKU subject to the following procedures:



(a) KU will submit its reimbursement for expenses on a monthly basis o WKU by
means of a written report approved by KU’s Executive Vice President of
Operations that inciudes:

(i) a cover sheet summarizing the expenses incurred;

(i)  supporting work statement of the charges for salaries/benefits for
services provided by each KU employee for academic, instruction,
human resources, information technology, payroll, legal, accounting,
budget, architectural/fengineering, immigration, student affairs and other
administrative support services;

(i)  supporting sheets indicating an itemized list of reimbursable expenses
for postage, telephone, internet, computer hardware & software,
cellular/satellite telephone, travel, etc..

(iv)  supporting sheets, including invoices, itemizing all costs related 1o
compensation and expenses for ail independent professional service
contractors providing services for the benefit of WKU;

(b) WKU will receive such monthly expense reports and submit to the Wenzhou
Finance and Tax Office for review and approval within 30 days of receipt.

{¢) Upon approval of each monthly expense report, WKU will arrange for a timely
wire transfer for the approved amount to KU’s authorized financial institution
pursuant to wiring instructions provided to WKU by KU,

(d) Since the salaries and penefits of KU employees assigned to WKU are foresceable,
upon execution of the contract, KU shall provide a list of employees, along with '10 ) L -?,)-b
fixed salaries and benefits expenses to WXU and within 30 days of receipt of said
list, WKU shall transmit advanced payment of these costs on a quanerhy-basis.

(e) After receiving the wire transfer in satisfaction of each monthly expense invoice, . W .
KU shall provide WKU with an electronic or written communication

acknowledging such payment.

Any conflicts or disputes regarding the approval and payment of KU’s monthly expense
report shall be resolved through friendly consultation between the Parties. [nthe event
the Parties cannot resolve a conflict or dispute, then either Party may submit the dispute
in accordance with the Cooperation Agreement.

This Reimbursement Agreement is intended to clarify the expense and reimbursement rights
and obligations previously agreed upon in the Cooperative Agreement and shall apply to all
such rights and obligations incurred by the Parties on or after November 16, 2011.

Any dispute arising from, our of the implementation of, o in connection with this Agreement
shall be addressed in accordance with Article 18 of the Cooperative Agreement unless
otherwise agreed upon in writing by both parties.



7. Anything not addressed by this Reimbursement Agreement shali be governed by the terms of
the Cooperation Agreement.

8  This Reimbursement Agreement is written in English and Chinese languages, with both
language versions being of equal force and effect. This Agreement is made in two originals
of each language, one copy of each language version to be held by each party.

9. This Agreement enters into effect upon signature of bath parties, with a term of validity of
three years,

N WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their

duly authorized representative as of the date set forth below.

Wenzhou-Kean University Kean University

Qian Qieng hilip Connctl:/
resident

Vice Chair of University ¢ouncil culive VI
Vol 11V




Expense Reimbursement Agreement between Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean
University

This Reimbursement Agreement is made and entered into effective as of the date of
execution by and between Kean University, Union, New Jersey USA (hereinafter referred
to as “KU") and Wenzhou-Kean University, Wenzhou, Zheijang Province, PRC
(hereinafter referred to as “WKU"). KU and WKU are each also referred to as a “Party”
and collectively referved to as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, Wenzhou University (hereinafter referred 10 as “WU") and KU
entered into a Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-
Kean University Between Wenzhou University and Kean University dated May 8, 2006,
and

WHEREAS, WU and KU entered into a revised version of the Cooperation
Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean University Between
Wenzhou University and Kean University dated December 22, 2010; and

WHEREAS, on December 23, 2010, WU and KU entered into a Supplementary
Agreement to the Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of
Wenzhou-Kean University Between Wenzhou University and Kean University; and

WHEREAS, KU and WU have agreed to further amend certain provisions of the
Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean
University Between Wenzhou University and Kean University to clarify issues concerning
the financial reimbursement of expenses by WU to KU for the opersation of Wenzhou-
Kean University; and

WHEREAS, on November 16, 2011, the Chinese Ministry of Education granted
“In Preparation” approval to WKU, and on June 14, 2012, WKU acquired official legal
status, and is hence forth recognized as an independent legal entity under PRC law, and
thus reimbursements agreed upon by WU and KU in the Cooperation Agreement, and
fusther clarified herein, may now be transacted directly by WKU, and thus WKU has
stepped into the shoes of WU and shall assume all rights and responsibilities with and to
KU prescribed in these aforementioned Agreemeats; and

WHEREAS, with the official establishment of WKU, a Board of Directors was
formed and Articles of Association were adopted on May 5, 2013 and amended on May
30, 2016; and

WHEREAS, WKU has advised KU of a policy change from China's foreign
exchange and tax authorities requiring that a foreign exchange of money transmitted out
of China must be based on an agreement prescribing specific amounts, and accordingly
the first such Supplementary Agreement to the Reimbursement Agreement beiween
Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean University was executed on February 28, 2017;



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and mutual promises
herein contained, KU and WKU agree as follows:

Services to WKU by KU shali be presented each year in a spending budget for the
following year to facilitate WKU’s arrangement of the overall budget. The
budget presented by KU shall be approved by the Board of Directors of WKU.

KU is entitled to receive reimbursement from WKU for all dircct expenses
reasonably incurred while providing services to WKU with the following specific
expenses explicitly anticipated by the Parties:

A,

Annval salaries and benefits of all KU employees assigned to the
operations of WKU as specified in their employment agreements, which
should also specify their check-in-date with WKU, and the starting date of
their employment;

Overhead costs for hours worked by KU employees providing services for
the benefit of WKU, an hourly rate for whlch shall be calculated by
dividing the employee’s annual salary bP(

Compensation and expenses for all mdependcnt professional service
contractors providing services for the 3enef it of WKU including but not
limited to: audit, legal, engineering, environmental, financial, tax, payroll;

which expenses should be reflected i in the budget provided by KU to
WKU, and KU shall provide WKU wul] prior notice of any such expenses
in excess of Ten Thousand ($10,000) USD that are not specifically
identified in the budget and any cxpcnduures in excess of Fifty Thousand
($50,000) USD not specifically 1dent|ﬁed in the budget shall be identified
to the WKU Board of Directors aﬂerwaqu

. Telephone, facsimile, postage and supplies;

Expenses for tangible technology purchased for WKU, including internet,
cellular/satellite telephone, computer hardware & software, tablets, and
other similar items;

Premiums for insurance, including but not limited to general liabitity
insurance, heath, workers compensanon, automobile, medical evacuation,
accident insurance for employees assigned to WKU, whether permanently
or on brief assignment from KU; political risk and/or business interruption
insurance; and additional Directors and Officers coverage required as a
result of operation in WKU. KU may add to this list upon its reasonable
determination of such need, with simultaneous notice to the appropriate
representative(s) of WKU;

. Travel expenses, including airfare, immigeation, lodging, meals and

ground transportation, with documentation as requested by the appropriate
KU and WKU officials;

. Reimbursements for KU employees who make out-of-pocket expenditures

for the benefit of and with the approval of WKU;



I

Any and all reasonable expenses related to the preparation for and
performance of duties for WKU by KU, and whenever rcasonably feasible,
KU shall provide WKU prior notice for any such expense that is not noted
in the budget, and obtain approval from WKU.

3. Notwithstanding KU’s right to all reimbursements agreed upon herein and in the
Cooperation Agreement and Arlicles of Association, wherever reasonable,
expenses that may be contracted directly by WKU and/or transacted within the
PRC, shall so be contracted and/or transacted.

4. KU shall submit requests for prepayments and reimbursement to WKU subject to
the following procedures:

A,

B,

On or before November | each year, WKU shall give notice to KU of its
enroliment plan for the subsequent Academic year.

On or before December 1 each year, KU shall give notice to WKU of
KU’s plan for WKU appointments, reappointments, new hires, promotions
and other similar WKU employment changes having a financial impact for
the subsequent Academic Year,

. On or before January 1 cach year, KU and WKU shall cxccute a

Supplementary Agreement specifying the estimated total payments by
WKU to KU inclusive of the Estimated Employees Compensation Casts
for the subsequent Academic Year,

On or before February 1 each year, KU shall receive form WKU a wire
transfer for the full Estimated Employees Compensation Costs for the
subsequent Academic Year.

KU shall reconcile the Estimated Employee Compensation Costs with the
Actual Employee Compensation Expenses on a quarterly basis and KU
shall provide WKU with a reconciliation report on or before January 30,
April 30, July 30 and October 30 each year.

If the Actual Employee Compenrsation Expenses are greater than the
Estimated Employee Comipensation Costs for which WKU pre-payed KU,
then WKU shall include the difference in the next monthly reimbursement
payment due to KU,

{f the Actusl Employce Compensation Expenses arc less than the
Estimated Employee Compensation Costs for which WKU pre-payed KU,
then WKU may deduct the difference from the next monthly
reimbursement paymeat due to KU.

5. In addition to the Supplementary Agreement and Estimated Employces
Compensation Costs pre-payment procedures, KU and WKU shall adhere to the
following procedures for reimbursement of monthly expenses incurred in service
to WKU:



A. On or before the last day of the month, KU will submit to WKU its request
for reimbursement for the expenses incurred during the prior month by
means of a written report approved by KU’s Vice President of
Administration and Finance that includes:

(i) A cover sheet summarizing the expenses incurred;

(ii) supporting work statement of the charges for salaries/benelits for
services provided by each KU employee for acedemic, instruction,
human resources, information technology, payroll, legal,
accounting, budget, architectural/engineering, immigration, student
affairs and other administrative support services;

(iii)supporting sheets indicating an itemized list of reimbursable
expenses for postage, telephone, intemet, compuler hardware &
software, cellular/satellite (elephone, travel, cte.;

(iv)supporting sheets, including invoices, itemizing all costs related to
compensation and expenses for all independent professional
service contractors providing services for the benefit of WKU;

B. WKU will receive such monthly expense reports and submit to the
Wenzhou Finance and Tax Office for review and approval within 30 days
of receipt.

C. Upon approval of each monthly expense report, WKU will arrange for a
timely wire transfer for the approved amount to KU’s authorized financial
institution pursuant to wiring instructions provided to WKU by KU;

D. After receiving the wire transfer in satisfaction of cach monthly expensc
invoice, KU shall provide WKU with an electronic or writlen
communication acknowledging such payment;

. The signing parties hereto represent that they are legally authorized to do so on
behalf of their respective entities.

. This Reimbursement Agreement is intended to clarify the expense and
reimbursement rights and obligations previously agreed upon in the Cooperative
Agreement and shall apply to all such rights and obligations incurred by the
Parties on or after November 16, 2011.

Any dispute arising from, our of the implementation of, or in connection with this
Agreement shall be addressed in accordance with Article 18 of the Cooperative
Agreement unless otherwise agreed upon in wriling by both partics.

. Anything not addressed by this Reimbursement Agrecment shall be governed by
the terms of the Cooperation Agreement and the Wenzhou-Kean University
Articles of Association.

10. This Agreement is writien in both English and Chinese languages, with both

language versions being of equal force and effect.



11. This Agrecment may be executed in counterparts.

12, This Agreement shell take effect afler signed by bath parties and approved by the
Board of Directors of WKU.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF the Parties hereto have affixed their hands and seals or
causcd these presents to be executed by their duly authorized corporate officers, to be
effective as of the date written below.,

FOR WENZHOU-KEAN UNIVERSITY FOR KEAN UNIVERSITY

Ry, —

Dawood Farahi
President
Kean University

Date: W?' '¢. fg Date: ;iﬁ%éﬂ /é 2&/ 7

Witmassed by: Witnessed by:
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1 | Supplementary Agreement to the Relmbursement Agreement hetween Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean
University 2017

Supplementary Agreement to the Reimbursement

Agreement between Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean

University

Whereas  Wenzhou-Kean University (hereinafter referred to as Wenzhou-Kean) and

Kean University (hereinafter referred to as Kean USA) and collectively {the
Parties) (executed a Reimbursement Agreement belween Wenzhou-Kean
University and Kean University in 2013, and modified the agreement in 2014
and 2016; and

Whereas  both parties agreed in the Reimbursement of the initial version and its

successors thal Wenzhou-Kean shall reimburse Kean USA the direct costs
incurred in providing services to Wenzhou-Kean, including but nol limited to
salaries, trave!, supply, professional service, etc; and

Whereas  the Reimbursement Agreement did not specify the reimbursement amount,

since it wilt be different from year to year, depending on the aclual costs
incurred; and

Whereas  due to the policy change in China's foreign exchange and tax authorities,

requiring that the foreign exchange transmitted out of China must be based
on an agreement with specific amounis;

Therefore,

Both parties agree that: L

1

2)

3)

4)
5)

A supplementary Agreement should be signed on a yearly basis, specifying an
estimaled reimbursement amount for that calendar year to meet the requirements of
relavent Chinese authorities; and

The reimbursement should slill be based on the actua! expenses upon supporting
documents as stipulated in the Reimbursement Agreement; and

in any year In which actual costs of Kean USA exceed the estimated amount of the
given supplemental agreemenl, the addilional actual costs shall be reimbursed with
the approval of Wenzhou-Kean, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.;
and

The estimated reimbursement for calendar year 2017 is USD $16,000.000 .

This Agreement shall supplement the Expense Reimbursement Agreement between
Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean University executed on Qctober 22, 2014 and



2 | Supplementary Agreement to the Reimbursement Agreement between Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean
University 2017

amended on September 12, 2016 which remalns in effect until or unless amended in
writing by both Parties.

6) This Agreement may be executed in counterpars and shall take effect ukpon
execution by both Parties.

This Supplementary Agreement is written In both English and Chinese languages with
versions being of equal effect. shall take effect upan the signing by both parties.

EON -

Dawood Y. Farahi,

President
FOR WENZHOU-KEANUNIVERSITY FOR KEAN UNIVERSITY
Date: qgjz]% &,dﬁ Date: 2’23"2&/7
Wi ed by:
/

%2/ . "('"{m{f ‘l:,,//fj/b Cf]
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Agreement on Curriculum Development and Program Update Fee
for AY 2015/2016 through AY 2017/2018 between Kean University

and Wenzhou-Kean University

Whareas Article $-02 of the Cooperation Agreement on The Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou Kean
University between Wenzhou University ond Kean University (hereinatier referred to as “the Cooperation
Agreement”) signed by Wenzhou University and Kean University {hereinafrer referred to as KU} on July
30, 2013 stipulates that “ The American Party shall be responsible for providing curriculym, list of tesching
materials, acodemic management system, and dightal Hibrary resource that are identical to those a1 KU, and
itsuing certiicates, dipiomas and degrees of KU in full campllance of the accreditation standards of Middke
States Commission on Higher Educstion (MSCHE) The resources described above shall be regarded a3
inlangible assets invested in WKU by KU, and shall be used by WKU with no charge during the period of
operation except for that provided In item 6-03 of Article 6; and

Whereas Article 5-05 stipulates that “The entire revenue of WKU shall be completely dedicated to the
operation and development of WKU {Annually S to 10% of the tuition revenue, beginning from the fourth
year of operations, shall be Invested In curriculum development, program updates and instructional
nnovation to ensure that academic quality is maintatned). Neither Party seeks profit from the operation of

WKU."; and

Whereas Article 6-03 of the Cooperation Agreement describes the rights and responsibilities of KU, among
which are XU's responsibliity to introduce an internationally advanced academic system to Wenzhou-Xean
University (hereinafter referred to as "WKU"}, to provide courses, text baoks, facliities and Nbrary materials
at the same or even higher level as those at KU, and to issue cerlificates, diplomas and degrees of KU, which
are the same as the ones Issued In New fersey and recognized in the USA, to qualdied students at Wxu;

and

Whereas both partles agree that the curriculum and programs offered at WKU must be regularly updated
to ensure the quality and refevance of education being delivered 1o the students and the satisfaction of
accreditation requirements by Middle Siates Commission on Higher Education {MSCHE); and that delivery
of the same Is the responsibility of XU, which responsibility has been met by KU with the use of KU’

resources; and

Whatreas the costs of KU curricuium development and program updates are costs associated with providing
service to WKU and It is fair for WKL to pay for benefiting (rom the updates and development of curricula

and programs; and

Whereas WKU must develop and upgrade Chinese cultural courses, physical education and arts education
courses to fulfill the requirements set forth by the Ministry of Education of People’s Republic of China thus
Incurring costs related to program development and updates as well; and

Wheroas both parties agree to maintain friendly cooperation and WKU will pay a curriculum development
and program updste fee for AY2015/16 through AY2017/18 {hereinafter referred to as “the Three Years®),

Therefore,




Both parties agree to the following articles.

L WKU shall pay the amount of RMB 8.77 millian Yuan, which equaks 5% of its total net tuitron collection
for the Three Years, in anie single payment to KU as the qurricutum development and program update
fee for that period, with any PRC tax incurred by this payment being the responsibility of WKL and not
deducted from the total amount due by WKW 10 XU.  This payment regresents cost recovery for the
invesiment made by KU in curriculum development and program updates and Is nat profit to KU; and

2. WKU may use the credit created In previous payments and reconciliation of reimbursements towards
this amount; and

3. KU shall exclude any curriculum development or program update relatad expense in the
reimbursement of direct cost under the Agreement on Reimbursement for the Three Years; and

4. KU and WKU shall renegotiate a comprehensive payment and reimbursement package going forward,
including, without limitation cumiculum development and program update fee, Kean support, direct
expense relmbursement, and all other items both consider appropriate, with the express
understanding that until execution of said agreement, the terms and conditions of existing agreements,

with the exception of this agreement, remaln in full force and effect regardiess of term dates and/or
expiration if any; and

5. The payment pursuant te Provision "1” of this agreement constitutes the entirety of KU's right to seek
payment from WKU for any costs Incurred for the period covering AY2015/16 through AY2017/18, with

the exception of direct cost re-imbursement for the remalnder of AY 2017/18 and submitted but open
itemns for previgus AYs.

6. This agreement is written and executed in both English and Chinese languages. Both language versions
shall be of equal force and effect.

This agreement takes effect ypon signatures by the authorized representatives of both parties, and shall
remain in eFfect until the Cooperation Agreement expires or both parties agree to revise or terminate it.

bﬁw&

Authorized Representative Signature Authorized Representative Signature
Dawood Farahi L4 4 é N
[l‘

Authorized Representative Printed Name Authob‘d Representative Printed Name
24,221F
Kean University Wenzbey-Kean University

Date: pate /(8.5
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AGREEMENT OF REIMBURESMENT AND PAYMENT BETWEEN KEAN UNIVERSITY AND WENZHOU-
KEAN UNIVERSITY

T
This AGREEMENT is entered inta as of this/ 7 day of dd‘dg?gzow, by and between
KEAN UNIVERSITY {"KU") and WENZHOU-KEAN UNIVERSITY {"WKU").

WHEREAS, Article 5-02 of Cooperation Agreement on The Establishment and Operation of
Wenzhou-Kean University between Wenzhou University and Kean Unlversity (hereinafter referred
to as “the Cooperation Agreement”} signed by Wenzhou University and KU on July 30, 2013
stipulates that “The American Party shall be responsible for providing curriculum, list of teaching
materials, academic management system, and digital library resource that are identical to those at
KU, and issuing certificates, diplomas and degrees of KU in full compliance of the accreditation
standards of Middle States Commission on Higher Education (hereinafter referred to as “MSCHE").
The resources described above shall be regarded as intangible assets invested in WKW by KU, and
shall be used by WKU with no charge during the period of operation except for that provided in item
6-03 of Article 6”; and

WHEREAS, Article 6-03-01 of the Cooperation Agreement describes the rights of KU, and
stipulates that KU has the right to be reimbursed for direct expense incurred while providing services
to WKU.”; and

WHEREAS, Article 6-03-02 of the Cooperation Agreement stipulates that “The American
Party shall... (3) issue certificates, diplomas and degrees of KU, which are the same as the ones
issued In New Jersey and recognized in the USA, to qualified students at WKU; (4) to introduce
internationally advanced academic system to WKU; and provide courses, text books, facilities and
library materials at the same or even higher lavel as those at KU... {6)provide any other assistance
requested by WKU from time to time.”; and

WHEREAS, Article 10 of the Cooperation Agreement stipulates that “The Parties hereby
agree that the trademark/tradename of KU, shall be licensed to WKU during the valid term of this
Agreement. The name of KU is only licensed for use and not as a part of the American Party's
investment. The Partias are to sign a separate Licensing Agreement”; and

WHEREAS, KU has been providing administrative and academic management support,
including but not limited to faculty recruitment, accounting and billing, student internship
placement, academic assessment and management, and so on to WKU for the purpose of realization
of cooperative operation of WKU,

WHEREAS, Wenzhou University and KU signed Supplemental Agreement to the Cooperation
Agreement on December 23, 2010 and March 3, 2014 respectively (hereinafter referred to as “the
Supplemental Agreements”) to further elaborate the rights and responsibilities of both parties; and

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2013 KUSA submitted a Substantive Change Application to MSCHE
to add WKU under KUSA’s accreditation which application was provisionally approved on March 5,



2013 and affirmed on November 21, 2013 by MSCHE, affording WKU students the opportunity to
earn an American accredited degree, which status is understood by the parties to be a contribution
by KU of significant value; and

WHEREAS, Reimbursement Agreement between Wenzhou-Kean University and Kean
University was first signed by WKU and KU on November 16, 2012, then modified on October 22,
2014 {hereinafter referred to as “the Reimbursement Agreements”), which have been executed and
performed ever since; and

WHEREAS, it is both parties’ common goal and to both parties’ mutual benefit that KU's
contribution is fairly recognized and compensated and also that WKU has predictable costs with
regard to payment and reimbursement to KU so as to maintain a predictable and sustainable budget.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing promises and other good and valuable
consideration, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Payment and Reimbursement Package. n order to simplify payment and reimbursement
procedures and economize human resources, both parties agree to change the way of compensating
KU for services and support provided to WKU. The payment and reimbursement package is
composed of base compensation and direct cost reimbursement. The detalls are as follows:

1.1 Base Compensation, Except as otherwise provided in Provision 1.2, WKU shall pay 9%
of its annual tuition revenue to KU annually as compensation for the following:

a) Salary, benefits, overtime and any other personnel costs of KU employees at KU
working partially or exclusively on providing service to WKU,

b) Costs incurred in performing any responsibilities under the Agreement on Faculity
Transition/Recruitment between Kean Unlversity and Wenzhou-Kean University
(hereinafter referred to as “the Faculty Transition/Recruitment Agreement”);

¢) Costs incurred in providing research support to WKU;

d) Costs Incurred in purchasing any tangible or intangible assets and technologies to
provide better services to WKU;

e} Allindependent professional services fees incurred in providing support to WKL,

f)  Alltravel costs related to WKU business with exception of KU employees assigned to
WHKU who shall be entitled to the same travel benefits provided to WKU faculty;

g) Insurance premiums paid for KU and KU employees in relation to WKU business;

h) Licensing fee for WKU to use the trademark and trade name of KU, provided such
usage is consistent with provision 2(j} of this Agreement; and

i) Any other costs incurred by KU for providing services to WKU under the Cooperation
Agreement and the Supplemental Agreements; and

j)  Costs incurred in curriculum development, program updates and instructional
innovation; and



Provided that 7% of annual tuition revenue shall be due and payable on or before
September 30 of each academic year, and the outstanding balance based on the actual tuition
cotlection of that academic year shall be payable on or before June 15 of the academic year, net of
any offsets for incidental costs pald by WKU on behalf of KU. It is agreed by both parties that for
academic year 2018/19, the 7% payment shall be due and payable on or before January 15, 2019.

1.2 Direct Cost Reimbursement.
(a) WKU shall pay or reimburse:-

i,  Salary and benefits for faculty assigned to WKU in accordance with the Faculty
Transition/Recruitment Agreement.

ii.  Salary and benefits for KU administrative personnel assigned to WKU, the positions
of which will be reviewed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of WKU and
the President of KU annually:

fii.  Costof MPLS-VPN established upon the initiation of WKU and pald by KU on behalf
of WKU in order to maintain stable internet connection between KU and WKU,

{b) Provided that (i} and (ii) of each academic year shall be prepaid no later than June 15 of
the previous academic year, and {iit) shall be due and payahle upon receiving actual receipts from
KU.

2. Services

In connection with the duties assumed or assigned under the Cooperation Agreement and
the Supplemental Agreements, both parties agree as follows:

{a) KU shall introduce curriculum developments, program updates and Instructional
innovation to WKU. The curriculum and programs offered at WKU shall be regularly updated with
their counterparts at KU to ensure quality and relevance of education being delivered to the
students and the satisfaction of accreditation requirements by MSCHE;

(b} KU shall provide WKU with all documentation regarding curriculum and programs so
as to assist WKU in fulfilling relevant academic requirements by Ministry of Education of China;

(c) KU shall perform duties and responsibilities under the Faculty
Transition/Recruitment Agreement;

(&) KU shall send academic and administrative personnel to WKU as is necessary and
appropriate to ensure academic/administrative quality and oversight. KU shall send KU's Vice
President for Academic Affairs or his designee(s} and a representative of each of the Colieges that
offer programs at WKU at least once each academic year . Upon the written request from the WKU
Chalrperson of Board of Directors, and the approval of te the President of KU, KU shall send
appropriate academic personnet to WKU as needed to ensure that the academic issue presented is
properly addressed at WKU,



(e) KU shall appoint a Vice Chancellor of Academic Affalrs and Deans and/or Associate
Deans of WKU Colleges. If any vacancy exists for these positions, KU shall appoint personnel as
acting or interim within one month until such vacancy is filled.

{f) KU shall send officers of KU's administrative departments to WKU as the parties agree
to be necessary and appropriate to ensure smooth cooperation between KU and WKU;

{g) KU shall provide training as both parties agree to be necessary and appropriate for
administrative/academic staff of WKU;

{h} KU shall agree to be reasonably diligent and responsive to WKU's inquiries and
requests, but in any circumstances shall respond no later than five {5) business days after WKU
makes such Inquires or requests; and WKU shall be agree to be reasonably diligent and responsive
to KU's inquiries and requests, but in any circumstances shall respond no later than five (5) business
days after KU makes such inquires ar requests

{i) KU shall make reasonable efforts to provide research support to WKU, and WKU shall
make reasonable efforts to provide research support to WKU faculty and students;

i) KU hereby licenses WKU to use KU's trademarks and tradename, provided that such
usage shall be in connection with performance of the Cooperation Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreements as long as the partnership exists. Upon prior written consent of KU, WKU can sub-
license KU's trademarks and tradename to any third party. If WKU expects to generate any income
from sub-licensing KU's trademarks and tradename, both parties shall negotiate on the division of
the income generated from such licensing. WKU and KU shall work cooperatively to protect KU's
trademarks and tradename in China;

(k} KU shall authorize appropriate personnet of WKU access to Datate! system and
provide necessary and appropriate training in operating Datatel system for purpose of efficient data
storage and transfer;

{1 KU shall provide WKU with accurate, complete and updated student academic
information, including but not limited to registration, academic assessment, transcripts and so on,
on regular basis and in a timely manner. In addition, WKU shall provide KU with accurate, complete
and updated information, including but not limited to enrollment Information, tuition charges and
collections;

{m) KU shall authorize the appropriate WKU officers, no later than December 31, 2018,
to print and offer the official transcript (paper-based} of WKU students;

{n) KU shall perform all other acts as may be necessary or appropriate, subject to all
conditions and limitations set forth in the Cooperation Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreements, with the understanding that WKU will provide any necessary support,

3. New Initiatives. Any new initiatives not mentioned in the Cooperation Agreement and
the Supplemental Agreements shall be reviewed by the Chalrman of the Board of Directors of WKV
and the President of KU. They will make a joint recommendation to the Board of Directors of WKU
for consideration.



4. Term and Termination. The term of this Agreement is five (5) years. If either party desires
to renew this Agreement, it shall give the other party written notice at least 180 days prior to the
explration of the Agreement. If the Cooperation Agreement is terminated for any reason, then this
Agreement shall automatically terminate on the same date without any notice.

5. Tax responsibility. WKU shall complete all the Chinese tax filings, and fund any payments
regarding Chinese tax liabilities Incurred herein. Any required Chinese taxes shall not be deducted
from the payment to KU of nine percent (9%) of tuition revenue. KU shall provide any and all
reasonable assistance to minimize the tax responsibility of WKU.

6. Assessment. The parties shall report to the Board of Directors of WKU on the status of
this agreement at least annually. The Board shall review the responsibilities of the parties as
describe hereln, and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of WKU and the President of KU shall
propose reasonable modifications as may be necessary.

7. Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by either party hereto without the prior
written consent of the other party.

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties
with respect to the subject matter contained herein and it supersedes the Reimbursement
Agreements. This Agreement may be modified only In writing by both partles to this Agreement.

9. Governing Law. The making, effectiveness, fulfiliment and implementation, amendment,
modification and termination of this Agreement are protected and governed by applicable Chinese
laws. This Agreement shall be construed under the Chinese laws without regard to any conflict of
law principles.

10. Compliance. Both parties shall perform its duties hereunder in compliance with the
Cooperation Agreement and its Supplemental Agreements and all applicable laws and regulations.

11. Dispute Resolution. In the event that any dispute arising out of or relating to this
Agreement cannot be solved, both parties agree to refer such dispute to China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, Shanghal Commission, and be finally resolved by
arbitration in accordance with China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Rules in effect
an the date of arbitration so long as the partnership between KU and WKU exists.

12. Notige. All notices, requests, demands, payments and other communications hereunder
shall be deemed to have been duly given if sent in writing, by fax, by hand delivery or certified mail,



to the address given to the other party in writing. Notice of change of address shall be effective only
upon receipt:

The partles hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above.

e

L
Dawood Farahi, Ph.D. Wang Beijlao
President Chairman
Kean University Wenzhou-Kean University
Date: /_0// / 7’// E(

Witr:'essed by:
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Agreement on Faculty Transition/Recruitment Between Kean
University and Wenzhou-Kean University

Party A; Kean University (KUSA}
Party B: Wenzhou-Kean University (WKU)

WHEREAS, Wenzhou University and KUSA signed a revised version of the
Cooperation Agreement on the Establishment and Operation of Wenzhou-Kean
University between Wenzhou Universily and Kean University on July 30, 2013, article
8-05 of which stipulates that “Academic management of WKU and the setection of
faculty to provide the instruction at WKU will be consistent with the current practices
at KU and

WHEREAS, Wenzhou University and KUSA entered into the Supplementary
Agreement fo the Cooperation of Agreement on Establishment and Operation of
Wenzhou-Kean University between Wenzhou University and Kean University USA on
March 3, 2014, article 4 of which stipulates that * In the initial siage of
Wenshou-Kean University' s operation, faculty shall be assigned by Kean University,
with the standards and procedure of the appointment following those of Kean
University, {f at such thne in the fiture, Wenshou-Kean University acquires proper
American higher education accreditation, Wenzhou-Kean University may appoint
faculty on its own, using standards and procedures muiually agreed upon by both
Kean University and Wenzhou-Kean Universily, so as fo establish and maintain a
stabilized faculty body"; and

WHEREAS, both Parties sgree that the qualifications for faculty teaching at
WKU will meet precisely the same standards as apply to KUSA faculty; and

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2013 KUSA submitted a Substantive Change
Application to the the Middle States Commission on Higher Bducation ((hereafter
referred to as “MSCHE") to add WKU to KUSA's accreditation which was
provisionaliy approved on March 5, 2013 and affirmed on November 21,2013 by



MSCHE; and

WHEREAS, KUSA is authorized 1o grant accreditcd KUSA degrees to qualified
WKU students who successfully completed KUSA degree programs in compliance
with all MSCHE requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of WKU reached & consensus at the board
meeting on June 5, 2017 that both Parties should work toward the goal of greater
management autonomy for WKU whereby WKU will gradually increase and improve
jts capacity to expand its areas of management and decrease the areas requiring

assistance and/or oversight by the Wenzhou-Municipal Government and KUSA,

In this effort and based on the principles of equality, voluntariness, faimess,
honesty end credibility, after friendly negotiation, and to attract excelleat faculty both
at home and abroad and maintain high teaching quality, and achicve the goal of
establishment of world class education, in compliance with all relevant and applicable
laws of both Parties; The two parties agree as follows:

1. Beginning July 1, 2018 KUSA shall help WKU establish an international
faculty recruitment system with standardized hiring practices and procedures,
a competitive compensation and benefits system, and employee policies and
handbook comparable to that of KUSA.

2. Effective from July 1, 2019 and thereafier, all facutty at WKU will be
employed by WKU, except those tenures or multi-year contract faculty
members employed by KUSA, with it being expressly understood that no
faculty appointment, reappointment or non-reappoiniment may be approved
without the prior written nomination/recommendation of the President of
KUSA, provided that KUSA shall make reasonable attempts to provide the
nomination/recormendation of faculty appointment within 30 days following
receipt of WKU's written notice with complete employment application
packages as defined by the KUSA Provost. And KUSA shall inform WKU of
its decislons on faculty reappointments and non-reappoiniments no later than



March 1* of each Academic Year;

Effective from July 1, 2019, WKU will have established and implemented a
payroll system that shall abide by sll relevant and applicable laws and
regulations of the Peoples Republic of China and in conformance with
standards agreed upon by both parlies referenced in Provision “5",

Effective from July 1, 2019 WKU will be responsibie for all faculty
recruitment, whereby WKU will recruit and recommend faculty candidates to
the President of KUSA or his designee, beginning with the Academic Year
20/21. While WKU will be responsible for all faculty recmitment, KUSA
will provide necessary support 10 WKU to assist in establishing systems and
procedures for reviewing teaching qualifications, conducting background
research, negotieling compensation and benefits, otc. In ils support to WKU
on faculty recruitment, KUSA will issue recruitment advertisements on
KUSA's websites.

In order to implement the requirements deseribed in Provisions 1, 2, 3 and 4
above, WKU shall, by no later than December 31, 2018, develop and submit
for review of the appropriate Vice Presidents of KUSA the following items

payroll guidelines, compensation and benefit system, hiring practices and
procedures, and employee policies and handbook. KUSA shall review these
ftems for compliance with KUSA acedemic, accreditation, and professional
standards, make any necessary recommendations with regard lo the
aforementioned items to achieve compliance with these standards, and retumn
the updated documents to WKU no later than January 31, 2019. Any open
issuc regarding KUSA’s recommendations shall be resolved together in

accordance to Provision “8" berein,

Upon the establishment and implemeniation of the items described In
Provision 5" herein, Contract/Appoiniment Letter for WKU faculty shalt be
{ssued by the Legal Representative of WKU in accordance with the other
applicable provisions herein, with it being explicitly understood that,



i. Upon written nomination/recommendation by the President of KUSA,
WEKU will make the final decision on issuing the Contract/Appointment
Letter to the Faculty candidates nominated/recommended by the
President of KUSA; and

i, Contract/Appointment letter templates shall be reviewed by KUSA, the
contents of which shall be in compliance with the standards for faculty
compensation and benefits discussed in Provision “5" as agreed upon by
both parties and all relevant and applicable laws and regulations of the
Peoples Republic of China,

7. WKU shalt send the appropriate management personnel to KUSA to observe
and ieamn each relevant and necessary process in pursult of a given initiative to
expand WKU autonomy. KUSA shall commit to reveal to WKU all relovant
information, including but not limited to information of their academic

assessment and recruitment system.

8. The Parties agree to authorize the Chairman of the WKU Board of Directors
and the President of KUSA, or their designees, to coordinate the efforts 1o
effectunte this Agreement.

9, Effective with Academic Year 19/20, upon WKU's request, KUSA shell select
its own current professors to teach at WKU as KUSA deems appropriate, and
will make reasonable efforts to provide one KUSA professor during each
ecademic year to each cotlege in operation at WKU. The salary and benefits
for any KUSA professors assigned to WKU will be fully reimbursed to KUSA
by WKU as direct cost reimbursement.

16, This Agreement is written in both English and Chinese languages in two
originals, with both language versions being of equal force and effect. Each
party shall hold one copy of each language version,



The agreement becomes effective upon the sig /nﬁby both parties.

T o—

Dawood Farahi {Vang Beijiao
Kean Umversi / Wenzhou-Kean University
Date: //7/{ Zﬁfg—m-[
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(Translation)

Honorable Dr. Dawood Farahi
President of Kean University
Neaw Jersey, U.S.A.

January 16, 2013

Dear President Farahi,
Thank you for your letter! The pumpkin in the photo is almost as good as mine.

I am very delighted to have met you again in Hangzhou last October to discuss
the recent developments of the Wenzhou Kean University project. On behalf of
Foreign Affairs Department of Zhejiang Province, and in my own name, | am
writing to extend our warm congratulations on the first enrollment of 204
students of Wenzhou Kean University!

Wenzhou Kean University is not only an important milestone of the friendship
between New Jersey and Zhejiang, but also an applaudable outcome of the
exchange and cooperation in education and culture between us. Zhejiang
Provincial Committee of the CPC and Zhejiang Provincial Government,
Wenzhou Municipal Committee of the CPC and Wenzhou Municipal
Government have atlached great importance to the project and will do our
utmost to build it into a world-class university of rich cultural atmosphere,
advanced teaching facilities, and solid scientific and technological capabilities,
just like Kean University, and a role model in China-US educational
partnership

| do hope that Wenzhou Kean University will serve not only as an essential
platform of friendly exchange sbetween New Jersey and Zhgjiang, but also as
a bridge of communication between our two countries. | wish that in the future
American dignitaries and celebrities will add Wenzhou Kean University io their
must-list of destinations in China.

The completion ceremony of the first-phase construction of Wenzhou Kean
University will be held this October. | am convinced that if you can use the
influence of Kean University and your personal resources to invite high-ranking
officials from New Jersey and the U. S. federal govermment to attend the
ceremony, this ceremony will be another big event in the history of exchanges
and cooperation between us

As far as | know, many famous American politicians and business people are
graduates from Kean University. We wish that we could make use of your
powerful alumni network to invite celebrities in various areas to give lectures or
host forums in Wenzhou Kean University, so as to make it a platform for



regular China-US high-level dialogues, forums and academic and cultural
events.

Not only | but all the people in Zhejiang cherish you as our old friend As the
Chinese Spring Festival is approaching, | am writing to send you the best
wishes from Zhejiang people and myself. We wish you and your family Happy
Spring Festival and all the best!

In closing, | sincerely invite you to visit Zhejiang again at your convenience. |
am very much looking forward to renewing our friendship and furthering our
capperation with you.

Sincerely yours,

Ruan Zhongxun (signature)
Director-general

Foreign Affairs Department

Zhejiang Provincial People's Government
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Department of Foreign A fTairs of the People’s Government of Zlejiang Province
25 Santeishan Rond. Hangzhou 310007, RR.China; Tel (086-571-87056640: Fux DORA-571-85156432
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